
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR 
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web:www.dartford.gov.uk

 
 
 

 

Audit Board 
 

 
 

 
 

    
 
 
 
 

A meeting of the above Board will be held on 
 

Wednesday 27 April 2022 
 

at 7.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford 
 
 

 

 
Chief Officer & Director of Corporate Services 

(19 April 2022) 
 
 
 

Councillor D A Hammock (Chairman) 
Councillor Mrs J A Ozog (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor D Butler-Ruhle 
Councillor S N Gosine 
Councillor P M Harman 

Councillor A R Lloyd 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 



 
AUDIT BOARD 

 
 AGENDA 

 
Wednesday 27 April 2022 

 
  
1. Apologies for Absence.   

  
2. Declarations of Interest.   

 

 To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of any Grant of Dispensation by the Audit Board or Chief 
Officer & Director of Corporate Services. 
 

 

 
3. Member Training  - Annual Governance Statement (AGS)   

 

 To receive a presentation from the Head of Finance. 
 

 
 
4. Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 26 

January 2022  
MD 

(Pages 1 - 10) 

   
 

 
 
5. Urgent Items   

 

 The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are 
any urgent items and their position on the agenda. 
 

 

 
6. References from Other Committees (IF ANY)   

 

 There are no references from other Committees for the Board to 
consider. 
 

 

 
7. External Auditor Audit Plan for 2021/22   

(Pages 11 - 32)  
8. Accounting Estimates and Related Disclosures - External 

Audit Request  
 

(Pages 33 - 64) 
 
9. Internal Audit Update Report (April)   

(Pages 65 - 84)  
10. Internal Audit Plan 2022/23   

(Pages 85 - 94)  



11. Strategic Risk Register Review   
(Pages 95 - 

122) 

 To consider and approve the revised Strategic Risk Register 
[Appendix A to the report]. 
 

 

 
12. Selective Invoice Checks   

(Pages 123 - 
126) 



1

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT BOARD 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Audit Board held on Wednesday 26 January 2022 at 
7.00 pm. 
 

 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor D A Hammock (Chairman) 
Councillor Mrs. J A Ozog (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Mrs. R Gosine 
Councillor S N Gosine 
Councillor P M Harman 
Councillor A R Lloyd 
 

ABSENT: 
 

Councillor D Butler-Ruhle 
 

IN ATTENDANCE: Sarah Martin  – Chief Officer & Director of Corporate 
Services 

 Tim Sams  – Head of Finance & Section 151 
Officer 

 Marie Kelly-
Stone 

– Head of Legal Services & 
Monitoring Officer 

 Jo Herrington – Acting Internal Audit Manager 
 Ian Wiltshire – Lead Auditor 
   
   
 Mr Paul Cuttle – Director, Grant Thornton UK 

(External Auditor) 
 

 
26. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.  

 
 The Chairman welcomed Board Members to the meeting, noted the presence 
of the Chief Officer and Director of Corporate Services, the Head of Finance & 
Section 151 Officer, the Acting Internal Audit Manager, the Lead Auditor and 
the remote presence of the Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer via 
the Teams facility. Mr Paul Cuttle from the Council’s External Auditors Grant 
Thornton UK was also in attendance to present his reports. 
 
The Chairman confirmed that the Member training session from the Head of 
Legal Services would be taken as the first substantive agenda item, following 
any declarations of interest. 
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Butler-Ruhle due to 
work commitments out of Borough. 
 

27. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST.  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

28. MEMBER TRAINING - BASICS OF LOCAL AUTHORITY GOVERNANCE  
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 26 JANUARY 2022 
 

2

Members received a remote PowerPoint presentation from the Head of Legal 
Services & Monitoring Officer Mrs Marie Kelly-Stone via the Teams streaming 
facility. Members were also provided with hard copies of the training material 
for their retention and ready reference. 
 
The principal areas covered in the training module included:  
 

 The structure of local government 
 Powers and duties Constitution (Section 9P LGA 2000) 
 Statutory Officers 
 Civil liability 
 Overview & Scrutiny 
 Governance 
 Split between GAC and Cabinet functions 
 Committees & Sub-Committees 
 Audit Board functions 
 Governance – ancillary 
 Delegation of functions 
 Recording decisions/Reasons behind a decision/Good decision making 
 Invalidating decisions 
 Acting unfairly 
 Bias and predetermination 
 Predisposition and predetermination 
 Consultation – Case law principles 

 
In the absence of any specific questions from Members the Chairman thanked 
Mrs Kelly-Stone for her detailed and comprehensive presentation, and wished 
her a continued and speedy recovery from her ongoing health issues, which 
had prevented her attendance in person. 
 

29. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 22 
SEPTEMBER 2021  
 
 RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the Minutes of the Board meeting held on 22 September 2021 be 
confirmed as accurate. 

 
30. URGENT ITEMS  

 
The Chairman confirmed that there were no urgent items for the Board to 
consider. 
 

31. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES (IF ANY)  
 
There were no references from other Committees for the Board to consider.  
 

32. REPORTS FROM THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR  
 

Page 2Agenda Item 4



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 26 JANUARY 2022 
 

3

The covering report from the Head of Finance submitted two documents for 
the Board to consider and note from the Council’s External Auditors (Grant 
Thornton UK): 
  

(i) Audit Findings Report 2020/21 (Appendix A to the report); 
(ii) Auditor’s Annual Report on Dartford Council 2020/21 (Appendix B)  

 
Mr Paul Cuttle (Director, Grant Thornton) advised Members that Appendix A 
represented the final edition of the auditor’s 2020/21 Audit Findings report of 
the Council’s accounts, previously presented to the Board as a draft 
document in September 2021 [Min. No. 22 refers], following completion of 
outstanding work. The final document contained no significant changes and 
was submitted for Members’ information. 
 
The Auditor’s Annual Report on Dartford Council for the financial year ended 
31 March 2021 [Appendix B to the covering report], included commentary on 
the Council’s value for money (VFM) arrangements. Members were advised 
that following changes to the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit 
Practice (‘the Code’), Auditors were no longer required to give a binary 
qualified/unqualified [yes/no] VFM conclusion for local authority accounts. 
Instead, Auditors now reported in more detail on the Council’s overall 
arrangements, as well as giving key recommendations on any significant 
areas of weakness identified in the annual audit process. 
 
Mr Cuttle advised the Board that under the new NAO code arrangements 
Auditors assessed local authority financial performance output across the 
three key criteria of economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of its 
resources. The performance of Dartford Council in the period under review 
had been strong and his positive annual report noted that no statutory or key 
recommendations were required and that the Council had appropriate 
arrangements in place to meet all three key criteria. The Council had also 
continued to demonstrate strong financial stability during the 2020/21 financial 
year, without the need to call on its financial reserves. Good partnership 
working practices had also enabled the Council to weather the impact of the 
Pandemic, with little impact on the continued delivery of services. 
 
Members were referred to page 13 of Appendix B [agenda p.49] which 
detailed some improvements recommended by the Auditor. Those concerning 
the Council’s current approach to ‘risk’ had been accepted and reported on 
later in the agenda [Min. No. 36 Risk Management Strategy refers]. 
Recommendation Two – Procurement Strategy had also been accepted, with 
a new Council strategy incorporating a SMART (specific, measurable, 
achievable, realistic and timely) action plan targeted for completion by August 
2022. Other minor recommendations regarding ‘reporting’ and ‘benchmarking’ 
against other Kent councils were set out on page 14 of the report [agenda 
p.50]. 
 
The Chairman thanked the Auditor for a very positive report on the Council’s 
strong financial performance in the period under review. 
 

Page 3 Agenda Item 4



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 26 JANUARY 2022 
 

4

In response to three specific questions from the Cabinet Portfolio Holder for 
Finance (attending as a Board Member), the Auditor and the Head of Finance 
confirmed the following points for Members: 
 

 All Government COVID-19 Discretionary Business Grants awarded to 
the Council were expected to be spent in the current year via the still 
open Omicron grant scheme; 

 The Council was in a strong financial position with good traditional 
income streams, based on the Auditors assessment of 2021-22 
performance, the proposal for a zero % increase in Council Tax for the 
2022/23 financial cycle would impose pressures, but was realistic; 

 There was plentiful CIPFA guidance available on-line regarding 
benchmarking, looking at Kent peer authorities would be beneficial or 
the Council could commission a benchmarking expert in the field to 
produce a report. 

 
RESOLVED: 

 
1. That Members note the completed final Audit Findings 2020/2021 

report attached at Appendix A to the covering report; 
2. That Members note the Auditor’s Annual Report on Dartford Borough 

Council 2020-21 attached as Appendix B to the report.  
   
 

33. APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR FROM THE 2023-24 FINANCIAL 
YEAR ONWARDS  
 
The report from the Head of Finance set out proposals for the Council to 
appoint an external auditor for the 2023/24 financial year onwards, following 
the conclusion of the current contract with Grant Thornton UK, which was due 
to formally end on 31 March 2023. 
 
The report asked the Board to recommend to the General Assembly of the 
Council for approval on 28 February 2022, that the Council accept the Public 
Sector Audit Appointment’s (PSAA) invitation to opt into the sector-led option 
for the appointment of external auditors to principal local government and 
police bodies, for the five financial years from 1 April 2023 for the specific 
reasons set out in para 3.9 of the report [agenda p.58/59 refers]. 
 
The Board Chairman and the Chief Officer both endorsed the 
recommendation from the Head of Finance. 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members recommend that the General Assembly of the Council 
[at its meeting on 28 February 2022], accept the invitation of the Public 
Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA), to opt into the sector-led option for 
the appointment of external auditors to principal local government and 
police bodies for the five financial years from 1 April 2023. 

Page 4Agenda Item 4



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 26 JANUARY 2022 
 

5

  
 

34. ROLE AND EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT BOARD AND MEMBER 
TRAINING NEEDS - SELF-ASSESSMENT  
 
The report from the Head of Finance enclosed a draft Self-assessment of 
Good Practice questionnaire (SAQ) attached at Appendix A to the report, for 
Members’ consideration and agreement, with a view to Officers developing an 
action plan for the remainder of 2022 to be presented to the next meeting of 
the Board in April.  
 
The SAQ had been based on CIPFA’s ‘Audit Committees: Practical Guidance 
for Local Authorities and Police 2018 Edition’ document, and represented best 
practice for audit committees in local government throughout the UK. The 
guidance recommended a regime of regular self-assessment of audit 
committees against an agreed template of objectives.  
 
As a first step in that process, Board Members had received a knowledge and 
skills questionnaire for completion from the outgoing Internal Audit Manager in 
November 2021. The responses received had highlighted some gaps in 
Member knowledge in the areas of governance, internal audit, financial 
management & accounting, and knowledge of the Council as an organisation. 
The results of that initial questionnaire exercise had been fed into the SAQ 
document [Appendix A to the report] for Members’ consideration that evening. 
The report also set-out a proposed series of bite-sized training modules to 
address the perceived gaps in Member knowledge listed above. 
 
Members had received an initial training module that evening on local 
authority governance structures and decision making [Min. No. 28 refers]. 
Further training modules were proposed prior to the Board’s meetings in April, 
July and October 2022 as detailed in para 3.6 of the report [agenda p.64 
refers]. Other matters raised in the self-assessment exercise in November 
2021 had been resolved by Officers in the interim, and the results recorded in 
Appendix A to the report or addressed elsewhere in the agenda papers e.g. 
‘Independent Member(s)’- SAQ 13 [Min. No. 35 refers].  
 
The Chairman thanked the Head of Finance for his report and saw the 
advantages of developing a synergy with Members of Sevenoaks Council 
over the appointment of an Independent Member(s) to their respective Audit 
Board and Audit Committee bodies, given Dartford’s joint Audit Partnership 
arrangements with Sevenoaks Council. 
 
The Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Finance [attending as a Board Member] 
endorsed the SAQ recommendation that he adopt a revised ‘Observer’ role on 
the Audit Board going forward [to be confirmed at Annual Council in May 
2022], similar to the ‘Observer’ role he filled on the Council’s Treasury 
Management Panel (TMP). He also welcomed the proposal for the 
appointment of Independent Member(s) to the Board going forward, which 
would mirror the successful appointment of Independent Members to the 
Council’s Deed, Trust & Obligations Committee (DTOC) which he chaired.  

Page 5 Agenda Item 4



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 26 JANUARY 2022 
 

6

  
The Head of Finance added the following additional commentary regarding 
the answers submitted in the SAQ document at Appendix A for Members:  
 

 Q3 – Audit Board Terms of Reference (ToRs): it had been agreed with 
the Head of Legal Services that a revision of the existing ToRs was 
required to improve on the current ‘Partial’ assessment answer; 

 Q6 – The Board did not at present formally report to Council, and as a 
consequence, was not formally held to account for its performance. 
Officers would consider what format such a report to Council [not 
Cabinet] would take, to ensure as user-friendly a document as possible 
for comprehension by non-Board Members. A further, interim option 
proposed by the external auditor Grant Thornton, was for Audit Board 
minutes to be formally presented to the GAC to note;  

 Q19 Feedback on performance: Grant Thornton’s reports to the Board 
as external auditor, did not provide feedback on the work of the Board 
per se, but could be used as part of a wider 360 degree assessment on 
assurance and value for money (VFM). 

 
On a point of order, the Head of Finance advised Members that the Board 
reported to the GAC rather than Cabinet, but that Board reports could be 
copied to Cabinet [and by extension the CAP A and B Committees] for 
information on request.  
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members note the draft self-assessment document attached as 
Appendix A to the report; 

2. That an action plan be presented to the next meeting of the Board in 
April 2022 based on Appendix A and Member discussion as recorded 
in the minutes that evening; 

3. That Members approve the bite-sized programme of training detailed in 
para 3.6 of the report. 

 
35. AUDIT BOARD - INDEPENDENT MEMBER(S)  

 
The report from the Head of Finance asked the Board to consider the 
appointment of one or two Independent Members to the body, and if the 
Board decided against the recommendation, to review its decision in January 
2023.  
   
The report set out the relevant CIPFA guidance for the appointment of 
Independent Members at para 3.1 to the report, together with the 
recommendations of the independent Redmond Review at para 3.2. The 
requisite skills and profile for such appointees were detailed in para 3.5 of the 
report. The proposed appointments would be for a period of 4 (four) years in a 
non-voting consultative capacity, aimed at improving the overall effectiveness 
of Board proceedings. 
 

Page 6Agenda Item 4



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 26 JANUARY 2022 
 

7

The Chairman and Members approved the proposal to appoint Independent 
Members to the Audit Board, and asked that the Head of Finance take 
matters forward in consultation with the Council’s Monitoring Officer. Members 
saw advantages in sharing that process with Sevenoaks Council, including 
the possibility of joint appointments, given the existing joint Audit Partnership 
arrangements between the Councils.  
 
The Head of Finance advised Members that the first step was to finalise the 
role description, skills, competencies and person specification for Independent 
Members. Following completion of that process, the question of joint 
appointments with Sevenoaks Council could be considered at the next stage.   
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members approve a recruitment exercise (undertaken by public 
advertisement), with interviews of applicants led by a politically 
representative panel of Councillors, aided by senior finance officers, 
subject to the agreement of the Chairman of the Board; 

2. That the finalisation of the role description, skills, competencies and 
person specifications of Independent Members be delegated to the 
Head of Finance, in consultation with interview panel members; 

3. That the appointments of successful candidates be recommended by 
the Board to the General Assembly of the Council for approval, for a 
term of 4 (four) years in a non-voting advisory capacity. 

 
36. RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY  

 
The report from the Chief Officer and Director of Corporate Services 
presented a new Risk Management Strategy [attached as Appendix A to the 
report], for the Board’s endorsement and approval. Appendix B to the report 
comprised Risk Management Guidance for Members to note. 
 
The report informed Members that the Council’s Risk Management Strategy 
(RMS) was last reviewed in 2015. Appendix A to the report represented a 
thorough ‘route and branch’ review of the former procedures, and set out in 
detail, how the Council would approach risk management going forward and 
the practices it will adopt to achieve its strategic and operational objectives, to 
make risk management appraisal integral to decision making in all areas of 
the Council’s operations. 
 
The Chief Officer advised Members that the revised RMS [Appendix A to the 
report], picked-up on the relevant recommendations made in the last report 
from the Council’s External Auditors Grant Thornton UK [Min. no. 32 refers], 
and that Appendix B contained an expanded 5x5 (formally 3x3) matrix scoring 
grid, to better measure risk [agenda p.88 refers].  
 
Grant Thornton had also recommended that the new Strategic Risk Register 
be reviewed more frequently, and a 6 month review regime was proposed 
going forward. It had also been noted that the 2015 Risk Register had 

Page 7 Agenda Item 4



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 26 JANUARY 2022 
 

8

contained far too many identified risks, and it was proposed to delete those 
risks that fell outside the ability of the Council to control, improve or influence. 
 
The Chairman thanked the Chief Officer for her report and Appendices and 
re-iterated a previous request, that the new enlarged risk matrix include 
directional arrows, to indicate whether the risk had increased or decreased in 
each case since the previous assessment. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members endorse the Risk Management Strategy submitted at 
Appendix A to the report for submission to Cabinet for approval; 

2. That the Risk Management Guidance attached as Appendix B to the 
report be noted; 

3. That directional arrows be added to the matrix scoring grid to indicate 
whether risk had increased or decreased [Appendix B report p.3 
refers]. 

 
37. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT (JANUARY 2022)  

 
The report from the Acting Audit Manager provided Members with an update 
of Internal Audit outcomes and activity since the last report to the Board in 
September 2021. 
 
Members were advised that the standard update report detailed the work 
covered on 5 audits up to 20 December 2021 as detailed in the table on p.3 of 
Appendix A with the majority of audit reports achieving a ‘Reasonable’ level of 
assurance. Follow-up work was detailed in Appendix C with two deferred audit 
actions now closed.  
 
In other matters, a new Internal Audit Manager had been appointed and was 
due to take up their duties on 21 February 2022. The Internal Audit Plan had 
been reviewed with two audits, Service Planning and Organisational Culture 
proposed for deferral, to allow time for new measures to those services to 
take effect prior to formal assessment. 
 
With regard to the proposed deferment of the two audits, the Cabinet Portfolio 
Holder for Finance sought confirmation that the Council’s Internal Audit 
function had not been compromised as a result of the Pandemic, when some 
IA team members had been re-allocated to duties in the Community Hub, to 
help combat the effects of COVID-19 for Dartford residents. 
 
The Head of Finance advised the Board that this was not the case. The 
annual internal audit plan was not a statutory document, but a risk-based plan 
subject to in-year revision by the Internal Audit Manager, as circumstances 
dictated. 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

Page 8Agenda Item 4



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 26 JANUARY 2022 
 

9

1. That Members note the report and the updates set out in Appendix A to 
the report. 

2. That Members approve the deferral of the Service Planning and 
Organisational Culture audits to the 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan as set 
out in Appendix A to the report for the reasons submitted.  

 
38. SELECTIVE INVOICE CHECKS  

 
Prior to Members considering the report in detail, the Chairman raised a point 
of policy.  
 
He had noted [in relation to para 5.1 of the report] that Internal Audit had 
previously reported to the Board in April 2018 their findings over the Council’s 
informal billing arrangements with the contractor G A Evans Aerials Ltd. 
Internal Audit had subsequently advised the Council’s [then] Housing 
Maintenance Manager to agree a ‘Schedule of Rates’ agreement with the 
contractor in question, but this had not been actioned as the latest spot check 
had revealed.  
 
Non-compliance by management challenged the authority and purpose of the 
role of Internal Audit (IA), and the Chairman proposed that individual service 
managers who did not institute IA recommendations in the future, be held to 
account and asked to appear before the Board in person to explain their (in) 
actions to Members. 
 
The Acting Internal Audit Manager acknowledged the Chairman’s concern 
and assured Members that IA follow-up practices would now include 
recommendations made as a result of the selective invoice checks exercise, 
to ensure appropriate action was subsequently taken by the relevant service 
managers. In the case under review, the Council’s Building Services Surveyor 
had agreed to procure a Schedule of Rates agreement with the contractor in 
question, before the end of the current 2021-22 financial year.  
 
Members had no issues with the other nine payments reviewed by Internal 
Audit [report paras 5.2 to 5.10 refers], and chose a further five payments for 
review with the outcome presented to the next meeting of the Board. 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members note the contents of the report; 
2. That Members endorse the Chairman’s proposal that Service 

Managers who did not institute Internal Audit recommendations be 
called before the Board to explain their non-compliance.   

 
 

The meeting closed at 8.26 pm 
 
 Councillor D A Hammock 

CHAIRMAN 

Page 9 Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



                
AUDIT BOARD 

27 April 2022 
 

 

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AUDIT PLAN FOR 2021/22  
 
 
1. Summary 

 
1.1. The External Auditor has submitted the Audit Plan for 2021/22.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 

 
2.1. That the Audit Plan 2021/22 for the audit of the Council’s Statement of 

Accounts, at Appendix A to the report, be noted. 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 
3.1 The Council’s External Auditor, Grant Thornton has submitted its Audit Plan for 

its audit work for the 2021/22 Accounts. The Plan covers a regulatory update, 
the scope of work, materiality, planned timescales, the key risks identified and 
requirements in terms of Accounting Estimates and Related Disclosures.  
 

3.2 A member of the Grant Thornton Team will present the report to the Board.  
 
4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
 Not applicable 

 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 
 

Financial Implications As per the report 
Legal Implications None 
Staffing Implications None 
Climate Change Implications None 
Administrative Implications None 
Risk Assessment None 

 
6. Appendices 
 

 Appendix A – Grant Thornton – Audit Plan 2021/22 [for Dartford Borough 
 Council] 
  

Page 11 Agenda Item 7



                 
AUDIT BOARD 

27 April 2022 

 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
Documents 
consulted 
 
 

Date File Ref Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

   Tim Sams 
Head of 
Finance 
343148 

Corporate 
Services/ 
Financial 
Services 

N/A 

      

Page 12Agenda Item 7



P
age 13

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 7

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/97b5a417-d9bf-4649-b3c3-3ae49a350fe7/FRC-AQR-Major-Local-Audits_October-2021.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 7

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/0fa69c03-49ec-49ae-a8c9-cc7a2b65382a/ISA-(UK)-540_Revised-December-2018_final.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

–

–

–

–

•

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

▪

▪

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

13

IT system Audit area Planned level IT audit assessment

•

•

• P
age 25

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

15

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

.

•

•

•

Ethical 

Standard (revised 2019)

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 7

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/601c8b09-2c0a-4a6c-8080-30f63e50b4a2/Revised-Ethical-Standard-2019-With-Covers.pdf


Commercial in confidence

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

18

Function Benefits for you

Data extraction Providing us with your financial 

information is made easier

File sharing An easy-to-use, ISO 27001 certified, 

purpose-built file sharing tool

Project 

management

Effective management and oversight of 

requests and responsibilities

Data analytics Enhanced assurance from access to 

complete data populations

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

19

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 7



P
age 32

A
genda Item

 7



                
AUDIT BOARD 

27 April 2022 
 

 

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND RELATED DISCOSURES – EXTERNAL 
AUDITOR REQUEST 
 

 
1.  Summary 

 
1.1. Continuing the approach started in last year’s annual audit, the External Auditor has 

requested the Council provide details on accounting estimates and related 
disclosures and presents these to the Audit Board.  
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That the accounting estimates and related disclosures (Informing the Audit Risk 

Assessment for Dartford Borough Council 2021-22), at Appendix A to the report, be 
noted.  

 
2.2 That the Board consider whether the responses referred to at Appendix A to the 

report, are consistent with its understanding and whether there are any further 
comments it wishes to make. 

 
 
3. Background and Discussion 

 
3.1 The Council’s External Auditor, Grant Thornton has advised that International 

Accounting Standard 540 on accounting estimates and related disclosures 
requires it to: 

 
 understand and assess the Council’s internal controls over accounting 

estimates  

 understand the nature and oversight and governance over the financial 
reporting process relevant to the accounting estimates 

 
3.2 This information is in addition to Grant Thornton’s Annual Letter to the Chair 

of the Audit Board about the management processes in place to prevent and 
detect fraud and to ensure compliance.  

 
3.3 Grant Thornton has provided the Council with a template, consisting of a 

series of questions, to be responded to by the Council (Appendix A). 
 

3.4 The Board is asked to note the accounting estimates and related disclosures 
(Informing the audit risk assessment for Dartford Borough Council 2021-22), 
at Appendix A to the report. 
 

3.5 The Board are also asked to consider whether the responses referred to at 
Appendix A to the report, are consistent with its understanding and whether 
there are any further comments it wishes to make. 
 

Page 33 Agenda Item 8



                 
AUDIT BOARD 

27 April 2022 

 

3.6 A member of the Grant Thornton Team will be present for this item to provide 
additional context to the discussion.  

 
4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
 Not applicable 

 
 

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments 

 
 

Financial Implications As per the report 
Legal Implications None 
Staffing Implications None 
Climate Change Implications None 
Administrative Implications None 
Risk Assessment None 

 
6. Appendices 
 

Appendix A –Informing the Audit Risk Assessment for Dartford Borough 
Council 2021-22 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Documents 
consulted 
 
 

Date File Ref Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

   Tim Sams 
343148 

Financial 
Services/ 
Corporate 
Services 

N/A 

      

Page 34Agenda Item 8



Informing the audit risk assessment 
for Dartford Borough Council 
2021/22

P
age 35
A

genda Item
 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which 
we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit process.  It is not a comprehensive 
record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot 
be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect your business or any 
weaknesses in your internal controls.  This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and 
should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any 
responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the 
basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any 
other purpose.

2

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Table of Contents
Section Page

Purpose 4

General Enquiries of Management 6

Fraud 9

Fraud Risk Assessment 10

Laws and Regulations 15

Impact of Laws and Regulations 16

Related Parties 18

Going Concern 20

Accounting Estimates                                                                                            22

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management  23

Appendix A – Accounting Estimates  26 

 
3

P
age 37
A

genda Item
 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to contribute towards the effective two-way communication between Dartford Borough Council's external auditors and 
Dartford Borough Council's Audit Committee, as 'those charged with governance'. The report covers some important areas of the auditor risk 
assessment where we are required to make inquiries of the Audit Committee under auditing standards.   

Background
Under International Standards on Auditing (UK), (ISA(UK)) auditors have specific responsibilities to communicate with the Audit Committee. ISA(UK) 
emphasise the importance of two-way communication between the auditor and the Audit Committee and also specify matters that should be 
communicated.

This two-way communication assists both the auditor and the Audit Committee in understanding matters relating to the audit and developing a 
constructive working relationship. It also enables the auditor to obtain information relevant to the audit from the Audit Committee and supports the 
Audit Committee in fulfilling its responsibilities in relation to the financial reporting process. 

Communication
As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to obtain an understanding of management processes and the Council’s oversight of the 
following areas:

• General Enquiries of Management

• Fraud,

• Laws and Regulations,

• Related Parties, 

• Going Concern, and

• Accounting Estimates.

4

P
age 38

A
genda Item

 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Purpose

This report includes a series of questions on each of these areas and the response we have received from Dartford Borough Council's management. 
The Audit Committee should consider whether these responses are consistent with its understanding and whether there are any further comments it 
wishes to make. 

5

P
age 39
A

genda Item
 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response
1. What do you regard as the key events or issues that 
will have a significant impact on the financial statements 
for 2021/22?  

The pandemic continues to be a key impact on the accounts in both the impact on the collection fund and 
grants awarded.

2. Have you considered the appropriateness of the 
accounting policies adopted by Dartford Borough 
Council?
Have there been any events or transactions that may 
cause you to change or adopt new accounting policies? 
If so, what are they?

Yes – there are no transactions which would need to lead to such changes.

3. Is there any use of financial instruments, including 
derivatives? If so, please explain

The Council’s Financial instruments (e.g. Investments and borrowing) are similar in classification
to last year’s accounts. There is no use of derivatives.

4. Are you aware of any significant transaction outside 
the normal course of business? If so, what are they?

Only continued spending on grants and other related costs in response to the pandemic.

6

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response
5. Are you aware of any changes in circumstances that 
would lead to impairment of non-current assets? If so, 
what are they? No

6. Are you aware of any guarantee contracts? If so, 
please provide further details

No

7. Are you aware of the existence of loss contingencies 
and/or un-asserted claims that may affect the financial 
statements? If so, please provide further details

Only those already disclosed in the accounts in previous years

8. Other than in house solicitors, can you provide details 
of those solicitors utilised by Dartford Borough Council 
during the year. Please indicate where they are working 
on open litigation or contingencies from prior years?

Barristers as and when required on specific case matters. Specific list can be provided. 

7

P
age 41
A

genda Item
 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response
9. Have any of the Dartford Borough Council's service 
providers reported any items of fraud, non-compliance 
with laws and regulations or uncorrected misstatements 
which would affect the financial statements? If so, 
please provide further details

No

10. Can you provide details of other advisors consulted 
during the year and the issue on which they were 
consulted?

Barnett Waddingham to provide pension fund estimates and Arlingclose -treasury management advisors.

11. Have you considered and identified assets for which 
expected credit loss provisions may be required under 
IFRS 9, such as debtors (including loans) and 
iinvestments? If so, please provide further details

No additional assets have been identified to those where provision is already made

8

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud

Matters in relation to fraud
ISA (UK) 240 covers auditors responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit of financial statements.

The primary responsibility to prevent and detect fraud rests with both the Audit Committee and management. Management, with the 
oversight of the Audit Committee, needs to ensure a strong emphasis on fraud prevention and deterrence and encourage a culture of 
honest and ethical behaviour. As part of its oversight, the Audit Committee should consider the potential for override of controls and 
inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process.

As Dartford Borough Council's external auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement due to fraud or error. We are required to maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit, considering the 
potential for management override of controls.

As part of our audit risk assessment procedures we are required to consider risks of fraud. This includes considering the arrangements 
management has put in place with regard to fraud risks including: 

• assessment that the financial statements could be materially misstated due to fraud,

• process for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, including any identified specific risks, 

• communication with the Audit Committee regarding its processes for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, and

• communication to employees regarding business practices and ethical behaviour. 

We need to understand how the Audit Committee oversees the above processes. We are also required to make inquiries of both 
management and the Audit Committee as to their knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud. These areas have been set out in 
the fraud risk assessment questions below together with responses from Dartford Borough Council's management. 

9

P
age 43
A

genda Item
 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response
1. Has Dartford Borough Council assessed the risk of 
material misstatement in the financial statements due to 
fraud?

How has the process of identifying and responding to 
the risk of fraud been undertaken and what are the 
results of this process? 

How do the Council’s risk management processes link to 
financial reporting?

Yes, it is not thought to be significant.

Fraud risk assessment in relation to key individual systems is performed as part of the risk
assessment process. The Annual Audit Plan is part based on assessed fraud risks and the
results of this work are communicated to the Audit Board on a regular basis. In addition, the
Council has a whistle blowing policy which is accessible to all staff.

Risks are discussed at management team and significant risks are considered when reviewing budget 
proposals (e.g. capital projects)

2. What have you determined to be the classes of 
accounts, transactions and disclosures most at risk to 
fraud? 

We would expect the main risks to relate to Benefits and Revenues Fraud, Procurement Fraud and 
Housing Tenancy Fraud.

3. Are you aware of any instances of actual, suspected 
or alleged fraud, errors or other irregularities either 
within Dartford Borough Council as a whole, or within 
specific departments since 1 April 2021? If so, please 
provide details

No specific areas of concern. During 2021/22 local authorities have been co-ordinating the issuing of a 
further two rounds of business support grants (Restart grants and Omicron grants). Multiple departments 
have fed into the checking and assurance procedures for the payment of the grants, from specialist 
Business Support Officers verifying initial applications to counter fraud staff utilising government provided 
checking tools to confirm the status of the applicants and the authenticity of the bank account to where the 
funds are paid. Dartford Borough Council continues to pay particular attention to the its two largest 
revenue streams – Business Rates and Council Tax with fraud & compliance strategies to review and 
check the validity of all allowances, discounts, exemptions and reliefs. As part of a Kent wide counter 
fraud initiative DBC has acquired new data-matching facilities to review its largest monetary support 
scheme – Council Tax Single Person Discounts. 10

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response
4. As a management team, how do you communicate 
risk issues (including fraud) to those charged with 
governance?                                                                                         

Regular reports on the work of the fraud team are presented to audit board as well as the approval of 
relevant strategies and policies. 

Urgent matters/issues can be easily disseminated across the organisation through the director/senior 
management network. The Internal Audit Manager and the Counter Fraud Manager report directly to a 
director/Head of Service and so general areas of concern can be raised during their monthly 1-2-1 catch-up 
meetings.

5. Have you identified any specific fraud risks? If so, 
please provide details

Do you have any concerns there are areas that are at 
risk of fraud?

Are there particular locations within Dartford Borough 
Council where fraud is more likely to  occur?

The two largest revenue streams within Dartford Borough Council are Business Rates and Council Tax and 
so naturally the largest areas for potential loss are the discounts, exemptions and reliefs allowed in these 
areas. Specific counter fraud and compliance strategies have been created for both which include utilising 
bought-in external data-matching technologies to identify both fraud and error within each database. The 
Counter Fraud Team has been working closely with the Housing Department to review applications to the 
Housing Waiting List to remove applications where the applicants have failed to declare changes in their 
circumstances thus removing the right to be on the register.

6. What processes do Dartford Borough Council have in 
place to identify and respond to risks of fraud?

The over-arching strategy covering the identification and responding to the risks of fraud is the Counter 
Fraud and Corruption Strategy (approved by management team 22/9/2020 and by Audit Board on 
21/10/2020). This policy confirms a zero tolerance to fraud; the explains the roles and responsibilities of key 
officers within the organisation; explains more about prevention, detection and investigation in relation to 
counter fraud matters; explains the sanctions which can be issued; how we engage with external partners 
and how fraud is reported within the organisation. Counter fraud and compliance strategies have been 
created for specific high risk areas such as Business Rates and Council Tax, these include utilising the 
latest data-matching technology to identify fraud and error within the databases.

11

P
age 45
A

genda Item
 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response
7. How do you assess the overall control environment for Dartford 
Borough Council, including:

• the existence of internal controls, including segregation of 
duties; and

• the process for reviewing the effectiveness the system of 
internal control?  

If internal controls are not in place or not effective where are the 
risk areas and what mitigating actions have been taken?
 
What other controls are in place to help prevent, deter or detect 
fraud?
 
Are there any areas where there is a potential for override of 
controls or inappropriate influence over the financial reporting 
process (for example because of undue pressure to achieve 
financial targets)? If so, please provide details

The CAE will assess the overall control environment as part of their annual audit
opinion. The internal audit plan is based on a risk assessment and is flexible to
react to emerging risks. The risk of fraud is considered in all regular audits.
Segregation of duties is in place wherever possible

N/A

Whistleblowing and Anti-Fraud policies have been promoted to staff

No

8. Are there any areas where there is potential for misreporting? If 
so, please provide details No specific areas identified

12

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment
Question Management response
9. How does Dartford Borough Council 
communicate and encourage ethical behaviours 
and business processes of it’s staff and 
contractors? 

How do you encourage staff to report their concerns 
about fraud?

What concerns are staff expected to report about 
fraud? Have any significant issues been reported? If 
so, please provide details

The Employee Code of Conduct provides staff with an ethical framework within which to work.
Governance briefing shared with staff. Included in the council’s standard contract templates is
a schedule relating to mandatory policies which includes a link to the Council’s Counterfraud &
Corruption Strategy on the Council’s website.

Fraud & Corruption Policy & Whistleblowing Policy available and communicated to all staff via
the intranet. Fraud Awareness Week promoted to staff
All fraud concerns to be reported

No

10. From a fraud and corruption perspective, what 
are considered to be high-risk posts?

How are the risks relating to these posts identified, 
assessed and managed?

Posts within the Finance Team and within Revenues & Benefits
Separation of duties. 

Baseline Security Checks are undertaken on all staff, including agency
staff, and more detailed DBS checks are undertaken on relevant posts

11. Are you aware of any related party relationships 
or transactions that could give rise to instances of 
fraud? If so, please provide details

How do you mitigate the risks associated with fraud 
related to related party relationships and 
transactions?

No

Separation of Duties, Declarations of Interest made at all meetings.

13

P
age 47
A

genda Item
 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment
Question Management response
12. What arrangements are in place to report fraud 
issues and risks to the Audit Committee? 

How does the Audit Committee exercise oversight 
over management's processes for identifying and 
responding to risks of fraud and breaches of internal 
control?

What has been the outcome of these arrangements 
so far this year?

Committee reports signed out by Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer and Head of
Finance & Section 151 Officer and annual report to the Audit Board (in or around
September/October)

Committee reports signed out by Head of legal Services & Monitoring Officer and Head of
Finance & Section 151 Officer

No specific concerns noted.

13. Are you aware of any whistle blowing potential 
or complaints by potential whistle blowers? If so, 
what has been your response?  there has been one whistleblowing report this year which is still currently under investigation.

14. Have any reports been made under the Bribery 
Act? If so, please provide details

No

14

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Law and regulations

Matters in relation to laws and regulations
ISA (UK) 250 requires us to consider the impact of laws and regulations in an audit of the financial statements.

Management, with the oversight of the Audit Committee, is responsible for ensuring that Dartford Borough Council's operations are conducted in 
accordance with laws and regulations, including those that determine amounts in the financial statements. 

As auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud or 
error, taking into account the appropriate legal and regulatory framework. As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to make 
inquiries of management and the Audit Committee as to whether the body is in compliance with laws and regulations. Where we become aware of 
non-compliance or suspected non-compliance we need to gain an understanding of the non-compliance and the possible effect on the financial 
statements.

Risk assessment questions have been set out below together with responses from management.

15

P
age 49
A

genda Item
 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Impact of laws and regulations
Question Management response
1. How does management gain assurance that all relevant laws 
and regulations have been complied with?

What arrangements does Dartford Borough Council have in 
place to prevent and detect non-compliance with laws and 
regulations?
 
Are you aware of any changes to the Council’s regulatory 
environment that may have a significant impact on the Council’s 
financial statements?

Committee reports signed out by Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer and Head of
Finance & Section 151 Officer and annual report to the Audit Board (in or around
September/October). Briefiings sent by legal services.

Committee reports signed out by Head of legal Services & Monitoring Officer and Head of
Finance & Section 151 Officer. Whistleblowing policy and 

Not aware

2. How is the Audit Committee provided with assurance that all 
relevant laws and regulations have been complied with?

Annual report to the Audit Board (in or around September/October)

3. Have there been any instances of non-compliance or 
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulation since 1 
April 2021 with an on-going impact on the 2021/22 financial 
statements? If so, please provide details

No instances of non-compliance

4. Are there any actual or potential litigation or claims that 
would affect the financial statements? If so, please provide 
details

Only as disclosed already by our Head of Legal Services

16

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Impact of laws and regulations

Question Management response
 5. What arrangements does Dartford Borough 
Council have in place to identify, evaluate and 
account for litigation or claims? 

Litigation claims are received and managed by Legal Services or the Insurance Section,
depending on whether insured risks or not.
Annual statement in accounts regarding contingent assets and liabilities.

6. Have there been any reports from other regulatory        
bodies, such as HM Revenues and Customs, which 
indicate non-compliance? If so, please provide 
details

Not aware of any reports

17

P
age 51
A

genda Item
 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Related Parties
Matters in relation to Related Parties
Dartford Borough Council are required to disclose transactions with bodies/individuals that would be classed as related parties.  These may 
include:

■  bodies that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by Dartford Borough Council;
■  associates;
■  joint ventures;
■  a body that has an interest in the authority that gives it significant influence over the Council;
■  key management personnel, and close members of the family of key management personnel, and
■  post-employment benefit plans (pension fund) for the benefit of employees of the Council, or of any body that is a related party of the 

Council.
A disclosure is required if a transaction (or series of transactions) is material on either side, i.e. if a transaction is immaterial from the [type of 
body]’s perspective but material from a related party viewpoint then the Council must disclose it.
ISA (UK) 550 requires us to review your procedures for identifying related party transactions and obtain an understanding of the controls that you 
have established to identify such transactions. We will also carry out testing to ensure the related party transaction disclosures you make in the 
financial statements are complete and accurate. 

18

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Related Parties
Question Management response
1. Have there been any changes in the related 
parties including those disclosed in Dartford 
Borough Council's 2020/21 financial statements? 
If so please summarise: 
• the nature of the relationship between these 

related parties and Dartford Borough Council
• whether Dartford Borough Council has entered 

into or plans to enter into any transactions with 
these related parties

• the type and purpose of these transactions 
 

No significant changes to note.

2. What controls does Dartford Borough Council 
have in place to identify, account for and disclose 
related party transactions and relationships?
 

Staff are required to disclose any such relationships they may have as part of the annual
appraisal process.
Senior managers complete an annual related party transaction declaration form.
Members also complete an annual related party declaration form and a declaration of any
interest and are expected to disclose any declarations of interest at the start of each committee
meeting in respect of any of the agenda items

3. What controls are in place to authorise and 
approve significant transactions and arrangements 
with related parties?

Managers review all forms completed by staff as part of the appraisal process to ensure they
are aware of any staff relationships which may impact on the service and can therefore take
steps to mitigate any risk
Members can not be involved in the discussion or vote on any agenda item on which they
disclose an interest.

4. What controls are in place to authorise and 
approve significant transactions outside of the 
normal course of business?

Spending Officers can only approve spend within their budgets and variances are reported on.
Purchase orders are required for most Council spend necessitating a separation of duties.

19

P
age 53
A

genda Item
 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Going Concern
Matters in relation to Going Concern
The audit approach for going concern is based on the requirements of ISA (UK) 570, as interpreted by Practice Note 10: Audit of financial 
statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020). It also takes into account the National Audit Office's 
Supplementary Guidance Note (SGN) 01: Going Concern – Auditors’ responsibilities for local public bodies.
Practice Note 10 confirms that in many (but not all) public sector bodies, the use of the going concern basis of accounting is not a matter of 
significant focus of the auditor’s time and resources because the applicable financial reporting frameworks envisage that the going concern basis 
for accounting will apply where the body’s services will continue to be delivered by the public sector. In such cases, a material uncertainty related 
to going concern is unlikely to exist. 
For this reason, a straightforward and standardised approach to compliance with ISA (UK) 570 will often be appropriate for public sector bodies. 
This will be a proportionate approach to going concern based on the body’s circumstances and the applicable financial reporting framework. In 
line with Practice Note 10, the auditor’s assessment of going concern should take account of the statutory nature of the body and the fact that the 
financial reporting framework for local government bodies presume going concern in the event of anticipated continuation of provision of the 
services provided by the body. Therefore, the public sector auditor applies a ‘continued provision of service approach’, unless there is clear 
evidence to the contrary. This would also apply even where those services are planned to transfer to another body, as in such circumstances, the 
underlying services will continue. 
For many public sector bodies, the financial sustainability of the body and the services it provides are more likely to be of significant public 
interest than the application of the going concern basis of accounting. Financial sustainability is a key component of value for money work and it 
is through such work that it will be considered. 

20

P
age 54

A
genda Item

 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Going Concern
Question Management response
1. What processes and controls does management have 
in place to identify events and / or conditions which may 
indicate that the statutory services being provided by 
Dartford Borough Council will no longer continue?

This would be identified as part of the budget review process. Our legal services team also share 
regular briefings with managers.

2.  Are management aware of any factors which may 
mean for Dartford Borough Council that either statutory 
services will no longer be provided or that funding for 
statutory services will be discontinued? If so, what are 
they?

No

3. With regard to the statutory services currently 
provided by Dartford Borough Council, does Dartford 
Borough Council expect to continue to deliver them for 
the foreseeable future, or will they be delivered by 
related public authorities if there are any plans for 
Dartford Borough Council to cease to exist?

Yes

4. Are management satisfied that the financial reporting 
framework permits Dartford Borough Council to prepare 
its financial statements on a going concern basis? Are 
management satisfied that preparing financial 
statements on a going concern basis will provide a 
faithful representation of the items in the financial 
statements?

Yes, reserves and financial plans are sufficient to enable preparation of the Council's accounts on 
this basis. 

21

P
age 55
A

genda Item
 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Accounting estimates
Matters in relation to accounting estimates
ISA (UK) 540 (Revised December 2018)  requires auditors to understand and assess a body’s internal controls over accounting estimates, 
including:
• The nature and extent of oversight and governance over management’s financial reporting process relevant to accounting estimates;
• How management identifies the need for and applies specialised skills or knowledge related to accounting estimates;
• How the body’s risk management process identifies and addresses risks relating to accounting estimates;
• The body’s information system as it relates to accounting estimates; 
• The body’s control activities in relation to accounting estimates; and
• How management reviews the outcomes of previous accounting estimates.
As part of this process auditors also need to obtain an understanding of the role of those charged with governance, which is particularly important 
where the estimates have high estimation uncertainty, or require significant judgement. 
Specifically do Audit Committee members:
• Understand the characteristics of the methods and models used to make the accounting estimates and the risks related to them;
• Oversee management’s process for making accounting estimates, including the use of models, and the monitoring activities undertaken by 

management; and
• Evaluate how management made the accounting estimates?
We would ask the Audit Committee to satisfy itself that the arrangements for accounting estimates are adequate. 

22

P
age 56

A
genda Item

 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management
Question Management response

1. What are the classes of transactions, events and 
conditions, that are significant to the financial 
statements that give rise to the need for, or changes in, 
accounting estimate and related disclosures?

See attached appendix.

2. How does the Dartford Borough Council's risk 
management process identify and address risks relating 
to accounting estimates?

Key risks are identified in service risk assessment - Most estimations do not impact on bottom line resources
so the impact of estimation error would mainly be reputational

3. How does management identify the methods, 
assumptions or source data, and the need for changes 
in them, in relation to key accounting estimates?

See attached appendix for breakdown of methods.

4. How do management review the outcomes of 
previous accounting estimates?

Key areas are periodically reviewed,

5. Were any changes made to the estimation processes 
in 2021/22 and, if so, what was the reason for these?

There were no significant changes to the estimation process.

23

P
age 57
A

genda Item
 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management
Question Management response

6. How does management identify the need for and 
apply specialised skills or knowledge related to 
accounting estimates?

Estimates are by experienced finance staff who will raise the need for review if the estimate required is
material and not within their professional experience or ability. The section 151 officer reviews key
estimates.

7. How does the Dartford Borough Council determine 
what control activities are needed for significant 
accounting estimates, including the controls at any 
service providers or management experts? 

This is managed on a case by case basis with the support of experienced financial team.

8. How does management monitor the operation of 
control activities related to accounting estimates, 
including the key controls at any service providers or 
management experts? 

This is managed on a case by case basis.

9. What is the nature and extent of oversight and 
governance over management’s financial reporting 
process relevant to accounting estimates, including:
- Management’s process for making significant 

accounting estimates
- The methods and models used
- The resultant accounting estimates included in the 

financial statements.

The Statement of Accounts are approved by Audit Board. Keys assumptions and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are explained within the Accounts.

24

P
age 58

A
genda Item

 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management
Question Management response
10. Are management aware of any transactions, 
events, conditions (or changes in these) that may 
give rise to recognition or disclosure of significant 
accounting estimates that require significant 
judgement (other than those in Appendix A)? If so, 
what are they?

No

11. Why are management satisfied that their 
arrangements for the accounting estimates, as 
detailed in Appendix A, are reasonable?

Yes

12. How is the Audit Committee provided with 
assurance that the arrangements for accounting 
estimates are adequate ?
 

Successful production and Audit of S151 Officer signed Statement of Accounts.

25

P
age 59
A

genda Item
 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

26

Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Estimate Method / model used to 
make the estimate

Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether 
management 
have used an 
expert

Underlying assumptions:
- Assessment of degree of 
uncertainty
 - Consideration of alternative 
estimates

Has there 
been a
change in 
accounting
method in 
year?

Land and buildings 
valuations

Valuations Review of valuation
inputs and variation
between years

Yes, An expert 
Valuer is used 
(now internal) 

Some uncertainty given Covid 19 lasting 
impact

No

Council dwelling 
valuations

Valuations Review of valuation
inputs and variation
between years

Yes, An expert 
Valuer is used 
(now internal) 

Some uncertainty given Covid 19 lasting 
impact

No

Investment 
property valuations

Valuations Review of valuation
inputs and variation
between years

Yes, An expert 
Valuer is used 
(now internal) 

Some uncertainty especially
around Bridge valuation

No

Depreciation Various approaches as
outlined in statement of
accounts. Main approach
for dwellings is straight
line over 60 years.

Valuer provides 
estimate
of useful life

Yes, An expert 
Valuer is used 
(now internal) 

Some uncertainty against
wider housing stock when
valuing on a Beacon basis.
Not all properties are valued
every year so conditions
may have changed.

No

P
age 60

A
genda Item

 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

27

Appendix A Accounting Estimates
Estimate Method / model used to 

make the estimate
Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether 
management 
have used an 
expert

Underlying assumptions:
- Assessment of degree of 
uncertainty
 - Consideration of alternative 
estimates

Has there 
been a
change in 
accounting
method in 
year?

Valuation of 
defined benefit 
net pension 
fund liabilities

Valuation provided by
professional actuaries
on behalf of the pension
fund

Valuation options and
reports are reviewed

Yes Since the outbreak of
Covid-19 as at the valuation
date, valuers consider they
can attach less weight to
previous market experience
for comparison purposes to
inform opinions of value.

No

Level 2 
investments

N/A no level 2
investments held

N/A N/A N/A N/A

Level 3 
investments

N/A no level 3
investments held

N/A N/A N/A N/A

Fair value 
estimates

Investment values are
based on market
valuations

N/A N/A N/A N/A

P
age 61
A

genda Item
 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

28

Appendix A Accounting Estimates
Estimate Method / model used to 

make the estimate
Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether 
management 
have used an 
expert

Underlying assumptions:
- Assessment of degree of 
uncertainty
 - Consideration of alternative 
estimates

Has there 
been a
change in 
accounting
method in 
year?

Provisions Estimate tailored to
relevant provision. Main
provision is on Appeals
which is based on actual
cases appealed and on a
percentage of RV for
appeals for the new list.

The S151 officer
agrees the estimation
methods for the
allowance

No It is uncertain as to how many appeals 
will be successful given that the appeal 
process changed in 2017. Appeals have 
been rules out relating to the pandemic. 
There is some expert analysis available 
but it will be more useful when the 
success rates of 2017 list appeals 
become clearer

No

Accruals Mainly based on invoices
received and paid/due to
be paid as well as
spending officer reviews

Each accrual is
reviewed by
accountants for
reasonableness and
budget monitoring is
used to detect any
unexpected amounts.

No No uncertainty identified No

Credit loss and 
impairment 
allowances

An amount is set aside
relevant to the type of
debt held and the
likelihood of that debt
being repaid.

The S151 officer
agrees the estimation
methods for the
allowance

No No significant uncertainty
identified

No but amounts
Will be reviewed 
give n the 
apparent end of 
pandemic 
restrictions

P
age 62

A
genda Item

 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Dartford Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

29

Appendix A Accounting Estimates (Continued)

Estimate Method / model used to 
make the estimate

Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether 
management have 
used an expert

Underlying 
assumptions:
- Assessment of degree 
of uncertainty
 - Consideration of 
alternative estimates

Has there been a
change in 
accounting
method in year?

Finance lease 
liabilities

Embedded lease based
on valuation of vehicles

The S151 officer
agrees the estimation
methods for the
allowance

No No uncertainty identified.
Balances are becoming
immaterial

No

P
age 63
A

genda Item
 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to 
one or more member firms, as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member 
firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not 
provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 64

A
genda Item

 8



 
AUDIT BOARD 

27 April 2022 

INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT (April 2022) 
 

1. Summary 
 
1.1. This report provides Members of the Audit Board with an update on Internal 

Audit outcomes and activity since the last report in January 2022.  It also 
presents information to facilitate Members’ oversight of the Internal Audit 
function.  
 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That Members note the Internal Audit Update Report and updates (attached as 

Appendix A to the report). 
2.2      That Members approve the deferral of the Asset Management audit to the 

2022/23 Internal Audit Plan as set out in Appendix A.  
 
 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

3.1 Reporting the outcomes of the internal audit service is a requirement 
under the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the Standards). As 
those charged with governance, the Audit Board is required through its 
Terms of Reference to provide oversight of the internal audit service. 

3.2 The Audit Board receives regular updates from the Internal Audit 
Partnership. Principally the focus of these updates is around the 
outcomes from internal audit work, progress against the audit plan and 
implementation of audit actions.   

3.3 The report also provides quality and performance information to allow 
Members oversight of the Internal Audit Service.  

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 

4.1 Not directly applicable although all Internal Audit work is designed to 
support the achievement of the Council’s objectives.  

 
 

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments 
 
Financial Implications The Internal Audit Partnership is responsible for 

the delivery of the audit service. Delivery of the 
Audit Plan is already approved within the 
Council’s budget and so needs no new funding. 

Legal Implications Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015, the Council must ensure an effective 
system of Internal Audit.  

Page 65 Agenda Item 9



 
AUDIT BOARD 

27 April 2022 

Climate Impact 
Assessment 

There are no direct climate change implications 
associated with this report. 

Staffing Implications Use of Internal Audit resources are set out in 
the report (Appendix A).  

Administrative 
Implications 

There are no direct administrative implications 
associated with this report.  

Risk Assessment The audit plan is risk-based. As such, the 
projects outlined in the plan have been 
prioritised based on the outcomes of each risk 
assessment.  

 
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 

 
6.1 Not applicable 
 

7. Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Internal Audit Update Report (April 2022) 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref Report Author Section & 

Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 
Previous Audit Board reports 
as published on the Council 
website.  
 
 

26/01/20
22 
 
 

Audit Manager 
01322 343004 

Internal Audit 
Partnership 
 
& 
 
Corporate Services 
Directorate 
 

N/A 

Page 66Agenda Item 9



1 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Update 
Report 

 
27 April 2022 

  

Page 67 Agenda Item 9



2 

Introduction 

1) Internal Audit is an independent and objective assurance and consulting function. The shared 
team undertake reviews over the course of the year that are designed to evaluate and improve 
the Council’s internal control, governance and risk management processes. Each individual 
review contributes towards the Chief Audit Executive’s overall opinion on systems of risk 
management, governance and control provided at the end of the year.  

 
2) This interim report provides Members with an update on internal audit activity, and, most 

importantly, its outcomes, against the Plan that was agreed by Members of this Board in March 
2021. 

 
3) It also seeks to enable the Committee to discharge its responsibility to provide oversight of the 

quality and effectiveness of the Internal Audit Partnership. The Key Performance Indicators for 
Quarter 2 are provided in Annex C and an update on the Partnership’s Quality Action Plan is 
provided in Annex D.  
 

 
Internal Audit Progress Update – 2021/22 Plan 

 
4) The approved 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan is divided into two sections; Plan A contains the audits 

that are priorities for completion and Plan B contains additional audits that will be completed if 
resources allow. Plan A also contains one carry forward from 2020/21 (Rent Arrears) that was not 
sufficiently progressed by July 2021 to form part of the 2020/21 Annual Opinion.  

 
5) An overall summary of Internal Audit progress against both Plans as at 8 April 2022 is below in 

Annex A. We have made progress against Plan A with seven pieces of work (including the carry 
forward) fully complete and a further eleven in fieldwork or reporting stages.  

 
6) There have been vacancies at Auditor and Audit Manager level during the year as well as long 

term sickness absence which have hindered the Partnership’s ability to progress the Audit Plan 
as quickly as expected.  The Audit Manager has now started in her post but unfortunately, our 
newly appointed Auditor has now left after only 5 months in post. 

 
7) We have reviewed the current Audit Plan in light of changes within the Partnership and within 

the organisation itself. In our view, the Plan remains broadly fit for purpose and aligned to key 
risks. However we are proposing one change which Members are asked to approve: 

 
 Deferral of the Asset Management audit until 2022/23 as the Council’s Asset Management 

Plan has not yet been finalised.  Waiting until the plan has been finalised and been 
implemented will enable us to provide assurance on the new plan and the newly 
implemented compliance checks. 

 

  

Page 68Agenda Item 9



3 

Internal Audit Outcomes 

8) As a result of the resourcing issues mentioned above, no new final reports have been issued since 
the last quarterly update.  The team have been focussing on progressing work already in progress 
and developing the audit plan for 2022/23. 

9) The chart below shows a breakdown of all audit assurance opinions to date for the 2021/22 
financial year. The chart will be continually updated for future progress reports to Audit Board.  

 

10) Members will note that overall, the largest proportion of audits received ‘Reasonable’ assurance 
and the overall proportions are approximately in line with the year end 2020/21 position. It will 
be continually updated for future progress reports to Committee. 

Follow Up 

11)  Internal Audit follows up all Critical, High, Medium and Low priority findings as they fall due. 
Annex B shows the results of our follow up process to date this financial year. There were 2 ‘High’ 
priority actions due in Quarter 3, one of which was implemented and the other was deferred. We 
have recently made changes to the follow up process to make it more robust. All requests to defer 
‘High’ and ‘Medium’ priority actions for three months or more must first be approved by the 
relevant Director; we hope that this will encourage prompt implementation. Auditors are also 
ensuring that they discuss the realism of proposed implementation dates with managers before 
reports are finalised.  

Internal Audit Performance 

12) Audit Board has an important role to play in overseeing and ensuring the quality and effectiveness 
of Internal Audit, in order to assure themselves that Internal Audit makes a robust contribution 
to governance and that reliance can be placed on its conclusions. This oversight is facilitated 
through the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme, which includes an action plan and 
performance indicators.  

13) Annex C contains the results of our Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for Quarter 3 (October – 
December).  These KPIs highlight that customer satisfaction remains good and that we are 

Limited
29%Reasonable

 71%

Limited Reasonable Substantial 

ASSURANCE RATINGS

Page 69 Agenda Item 9



4 

planning sufficiently in advance of audit fieldwork.  The main areas for action at this stage are 
percentage of budgeted days taken to complete a project and the timeliness of audit delivery.  
The KPIs show that too few draft reports are issued by the date given on the audit brief and audits 
are repeatedly taking more days to complete that anticipated.  We continue to explore root 
causes and address these in 1:1s and team meetings, including whether initial expectations are 
realistic.  

14) The results of the various strands of our Quality Assurance activity combine into a single, 
overarching Quality Improvement Plan which is presented in Annex D (as at 4 March 2022). The 
Plan is divided into different themes encompassing internal audit activity but the fundamental 
objectives of the Plan are to move us into a position of being ‘Generally Conformant’ with the 
standards, improve service efficiency and to ensure that all audit work adds value to the Council. 
It is presented to Audit Board minimum six monthly and was last reported in July 2021.  

15) The current iteration shows that we have made some good progress against our actions, including 
review of core processes (in particular those which relate to reporting), development of a 
Customer Charter and provision of the majority of identified training. Some actions are behind 
schedule, which is mainly due to the change in Audit Manager; it would not be appropriate, for 
example, to develop an Audit Strategy until the new manager is in post. A further update will be 
presented to Members as part of the Annual Report in July 2022. 

Conclusion  

16) We have continued our work on the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan and have made some steady 
progress, with seven final reports issued and a further eleven in fieldwork or reporting stages. We 
have seen some staffing changes with the arrival of the Audit Manager and the departure of the 
Auditor.  At this stage in the financial year, on the basis of both the assurance and consultancy 
work completed to date and the outcomes of follow up activity, my interim overall opinion on 
systems of risk management, governance and control continues to be ‘Reasonable’ in line with 
the opinion provided in July 2021.  

17) We would like to thank Officers, Managers and Members for their ongoing support and co-
operation to enable us to deliver our work. 

Jennifer Warrillow, CMIIA 

Audit Manager 
  

Page 70Agenda Item 9



5 

 Annex A – Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 

Plan A 
2021/22 Audit Title Type Current Status 

Assurance 

c/f 
2020/21 

Rent Collection / Rent Arrears 
(Current Tenants) 

Assurance Complete Reasonable 

1 Business Continuity Assurance Complete Reasonable 
2 Case Management Assurance Planning  
3 Freedom of Information / 

Environmental Information  
Assurance Complete Reasonable 

4 Dartford Private Leasing 
Scheme 

Assurance Complete Limited 

5 Organisational Culture Assurance Deferred  
6 Assurance Mapping  Consultancy Not yet started  
7 Fraud Risk Assessment Consultancy Planning  
8 IT Governance Assurance Fieldwork  
9 Safeguarding Assurance Complete Limited 
10 Treasury Management Assurance Complete Reasonable 
11 Information Security Assurance Fieldwork  
12 Staff Wellbeing Assurance Fieldwork  
13 Covid-19 Response & Recovery Assurance Fieldwork  
14 Environmental Enforcement Assurance Draft Report  
15 Temporary Accommodation Assurance Complete Reasonable 
16 Consultation Assurance Draft Report  
17 Asset Management Assurance Requested to be 

deferred 
 

18 Environmental Health - New 
Service Review 

Assurance Deferred  

19 
Data Protection Act 2018 

Consultancy Included in various 
audits during the 
year 

 

20 Waivers Assurance Complete Reasonable 
21 Disaster Recovery Assurance Draft Report   
22 Emergency Planning Assurance Planning  
23 Planned Maintenance - 

Statutory Compliance  
Assurance Fieldwork  

24 Corporate Project Governance 
- Acacia Hall 

Assurance Draft Report 
Issued 

 

25 Service Planning Assurance Deferred   
26 Community Infrastructure Levy Assurance Fieldwork  
27 Council Tax and Enforcement 

(shared) 
Assurance 
and 
Consultancy 

Fieldwork  

28 IR35 Assurance Fieldwork  
  

Page 71 Agenda Item 9



6 

Plan B 
21/22 

Audit Title Type Current status Assurance 

1 Council Tax Reduction Scheme Assurance Not undertaken  
2 Discretionary Powers Assurance Not undertaken  
3 Corporate Complaints Assurance Not undertaken  
4 Workforce Development / 

Talent Management / 
Succession Planning  

Assurance Not undertaken  

5 Performance Management 
Framework Assurance Not undertaken 

 

6 Waste Contract Consultancy  Not undertaken  
7 Procurement Assurance Draft Report   
8 Parking Enforcement  Assurance Not undertaken  
9 Equality and Diversity  Assurance Not undertaken  
10 Private Sector Discretionary 

Assistance Policy  
Assurance Not undertaken  

11 Acquisition and Disposal Assurance Not undertaken  
12 Commercial Lease 

Management 
Assurance Not undertaken  

13 Town Centre Improvement 
Scheme 

Assurance Not undertaken  

  

Page 72Agenda Item 9



7 

Annex B - Audit actions  
We raise recommendations to assist management in addressing control failings, or to suggest service improvements following the results of our 
testing. In accordance with our follow-up process all audit actions are tracked and followed up when they fall due. The table below shows all 
audits with open actions from April 2021 to the date of writing. Column E indicates which of these were due between October and December 
2021, which we have now followed up. Columns G and H give a summary of that follow up process: 

A-Project 
B-Service 
Manager 

C-Report Issue 
Date & Rating 

D-Agreed 
actions in 

Final Report 

E-Actions 
due Q3 

F-Not due 
yet 

G-Closed 
Q3 

H-Deferrals 
this Qtr. 

I-Total 
actions 

closed to 
date 

J-Total 
actions 

outstanding 

Post GDPR Review 
2018/19  

Sarah Martin / IT 
Services  

June 2019  
Substantial 

5  1 (M) 0  1 (M) 0  5 0 

Accounts Receivable 
2019/20 Tim Sams April 2020 

Full 3 1 (L) 0 1 (L) 0 3 0 

Garage Management 
2019/20 Paul Koster August 2020 

Substantial 3 1 (M) 0 1 (M) 0 3 0 

Dartford Town Against 
Crime 2020/21 Anthony Henley 

December 
2020 

Substantial 
4 1 (M), 1 (L) 0 1 (M), 1 (L) 0 4 0 

New Build Capital 
Programme 2020/21 Peter Dosad February 2021 

Substantial 3 0 1 (M) 0 0 2 1 

Local Air Quality 
Management 2020/21 Annie Sargent 

March 2021 
Limited 

Assurance 
6 2 (M) 1 (H) 2 (M) 0 5 1 

Waste Collection & Street 
Cleansing 2020/21 Dave Thomas May 2021 

Limited 10 2(M) 0 1 (M) 1 (M) 9 1 

Change Control 2020/21 Sarah Martin May 2021 
Limited 10 2(H), 4(M) 0 1 (H), 3 (M) 1 (H), 1 (M) 8 2 

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 9



8 

A-Project 
B-Service 
Manager 

C-Report Issue 
Date & Rating 

D-Agreed 
actions in 

Final Report 

E-Actions 
due Q3 

F-Not due 
yet 

G-Closed 
Q3 

H-Deferrals 
this Qtr. 

I-Total 
actions 

closed to 
date 

J-Total 
actions 

outstanding 

Contract Management 
2020/21 Tim Sams June 2021 

Limited 4 2 (M) 2 (M) 2 (M) 0 2 2 

Reactive Repairs 2020/21 Paul Koster July 2021 
Substantial 1 1 (M) 0 1 (M) 0 1 0 

Housing Benefits 2020/21 
(shared) Heather Gaynor July 2021 

Substantial 2 1 (M) 0 1 (M) 0 2 0 

Contract Waivers 2021/22 Toby Cobbin July 2021 
Reasonable 4 0 2 (M) 0 0 2 2 

Planning Administration 
Fees 2020/21 Sonia Collins August 2021 

Substantial 3 1 (M) 2(L) 1 (M) 0 1  2 

Rent Collection & Arrears 
2020/21 David Edie August 2021 

Substantial 2 2 (M) 0 2 (M) 0 2 0 

Freedom of Information 
2021/22 Sarah Martin 

September 
2021 

Reasonable 
3 1 (M) 0 0 1 (M) 2 1 

Treasury Management 
2021/22 Catherine Bailey 

November 
2021 

Reasonable 
1 1 (M) 0 1 (M) 0 1 0 

Dartford Private Leasing 
Scheme 2021/22 Paul Koster 

November 
2021 

Limited 
9 0 1 (M) 1 (L) 1 (H), 6 (M) 0 7 2 

Temporary 
Accommodation 2021/22 Jaya Prashar 

December 
2021 

Reasonable 
4 0 2 (M), 1 

(L)  1(L) 0 1 3 

P
age 74

A
genda Item

 9



9 

A-Project 
B-Service 
Manager 

C-Report Issue 
Date & Rating 

D-Agreed 
actions in 

Final Report 

E-Actions 
due Q3 

F-Not due 
yet 

G-Closed 
Q3 

H-Deferrals 
this Qtr. 

I-Total 
actions 

closed to 
date 

J-Total 
actions 

outstanding 

Safeguarding 2021/22 Peter Dosad 
December 

2021 
Limited 

5 0 4 (H) 0 0 1 4 

    TOTAL  82 24 17 281 4 61 21 

Based on the results of our follow-up work, there are 21 ‘live’ actions that we are actively tracking and monitoring. We will report progress on 
the implementation of these actions as they fall due, as part of this regular summary report.  

  

 
1 Eight additional actions that weren’t due in Q3 have been implemented ahead of schedule because of proactive action taken by the service.  

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 9



10 

Deferrals 
This table shows the four audit actions that have been deferred or are in progress beyond the due date. Officers have been asked to provide an 
update on progress, and the reason for the deferral: 

Project Action (including priority) Original 
agreed date 

Revised 
date Reason for deferral 

No. of 
times 

deferred 

Freedom of 
Information 

2021/22 

1.Mandatory Training 
(Medium) 30/9/21 31/5/22 

Management Comment: 
The Chief Officer and Director of Corporate Services requested a further deferral to 
the end of April 2022. 
 
Audit Comment: 
Internal Audit have agreed to defer this action for a further month, to the end of May 
2022, to allow for the system to be embedded. 

2 

Change Control 
2020/21 

1. Change Management 
Policy/Procedure 

(Medium) 
31/10/21 31/3/22 

Management Comment: 
The new Head of IT and Transformation has advised that a draft of a new Change 
Management policy will be created by end March 2022.  Deferral of this action has 
been agreed by the Chief Officer and Director of Community Services. 
 
Audit Comment: 
Based on the above, Internal Audit have deferred this action to the end of March 
2022. 

1 

Change Control 
2020/21 

4. Changes Follow A 
Specific Procedure (High) 31/10/21 31/3/22 

Management Comment: 
The new Head of IT and Transformation has advised that an overview of the criteria 
will be included within the new Change Management policy.  Deferral of this action 
has been agreed by the Chief Officer and Director of Community Services. 
 
Audit Comment: 
Based on the above, Internal Audit have deferred this action to the end of March 
2022. 

1 

Waste Collection & 
Street Cleansing 

2020/21 
8.Performance 31/10/21 31/1/22 

Management Comment: 
Work on the Whitespace report is in progress, but will take longer to refine. Deferral 
requested until the end of January 2022. 
 
Audit Comment: 
This action has since been completed. 

1 

P
age 76

A
genda Item

 9



11 

Annex C – Key Performance Indicators for Q3 (October – December) 

Finance: Associated performance indicators Q3 (October - December) 

F1: Percentage of budgeted days taken to complete projects – Target 100%  Reported on a cumulative basis 

Indicator measures any variance between the days agreed on the final brief vs. the actual time coded 

172% 

F2: Chargeable days – Target 75%  Reported on a quarterly basis 

Indicator measures the actual chargeable activities against the assumptions made in the audit plan 

Average 75% 

F3: PSIAS conformance – Target ‘Generally Conforms’ (IIA definition)Reported annually  

Indicator measures effectiveness of the Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme (QAIP) to ensure 
compliance with professional Standards.  

To be reported at the end of 
2021/22 

Client satisfaction: Associated performance indicators Q3 (October– December) 

C1: Respondents satisfied with the overall audit experience – Target 90% Reported on a project by project basis 

Indicator measures Client satisfaction with how we undertook the work, and takes into account our 
professionalism, approach and competence  

4/4 100% 

C2: Respondents agreement with the audit actions – Target 90% Reported on a project by project basis 

Indicator measures Client agreement to the audit findings and resulting actions from our audit work 

 

53.5/54 99% 

 

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 9



12 

Internal processes: Associated performance indicators Q3 (October – December) 

I1: Percentage of draft audit briefs issued at least 10 working days before the start of fieldwork.  - Target 90%   
Reported on a project by project basis 

Indicator measures the effectiveness of our project planning and communications with the client 

3/3 100% 

I2: Percentage of draft audit reports issued by the date given on the final audit brief  - Target 70% Reported on a 
project by project basis 

Indicator measures the efficiency of our audit work, currency of our audit finding and effective engagement 
between Auditors and Clients  

1/7 14% 

I3: Time taken between issue of the DRAFT report and FINAL report – Target 15 working days  Reported on a 
project by project basis 

Indicator measures the effectiveness of our process to finalise audit reports and issue the report in a timely 
manner  

6/9 66% 

Learning & Development: Associated performance indicators Q3 (October – December) 

L1: Audit actions fully implemented within agreed timescales – Target 80%  Reported on a monthly basis 

Indicator measures the successful implementation of audit actions and the effectiveness of our follow-up process 

 

October – 6/9 = 67% 

November – 11/15 = 73% 

December – 3/4 = 75% 

L2: Training & development days  - Reported annually 

Indicator measures our investment and time spent on training and development against the assumptions made in 
the audit plan 

42.41 Days  
(annual budget of 29 days) 

P
age 78

A
genda Item

 9



13 

 

Annex D – Quality Action Plan 

Theme Action  Target Date Status Update 
Reporting Review the assurance levels for individual 

reports. 
To be introduced for financial year 
2021/22. 

Complete 

Reporting Review the assurance levels for the Annual 
Opinion.  

Graded opinion to be provided for 
2020/21.  

Complete 

Reporting Review report format to ensure that it is fit 
for purpose but “lean” – only containing 
elements that add value to the customer. 
Include guidance notes. 

To be introduced for financial year 
2021/22. 

Complete but continue to monitor - Report 
format has been reviewed, including 
guidance notes, and rolled out to team in 
March 2021 team meeting. If report 
timeliness and initial quality does not 
improve following additional training, may 
need to consider amending further by 
streamlining again and removing detailed 
findings section - this will require 
stakeholder consultation.  

Reporting Deliver report writing training in team 
meeting session.  

Jul-21 Complete 

Reporting Deliver root cause analysis training in team 
meeting session.  

Aug-21 Complete 

Reporting Review action priority levels. April 2022 Not yet started. 

Reporting Review the Annual Opinion report template 
and contents to ensure that IA reports to 
committee are more strategic and focused 
on outcomes / key themes and issues. 

Jul-21 Complete 

P
age 79

A
genda Item

 9



14 

Theme Action  Target Date Status Update 
Co-ordination of 
Assurance 

Develop assurance maps for both 
organisations 
a) Discuss other forms of assurance as part of 
2021/22 Audit Planning 
b) Add assurance maps to both Plans for 
2021/22. 

Complete by March 2022. In progress - Outline complete but change in 
Audit Manager has delayed work in this area 
and so will commence during 2022/23. 

Co-ordination of 
Assurance 

Develop relationships with EA 
1) Set up regular liaison meetings (every 4 
months?).  

For 2021/22 financial year with 
new EA personnel. 

Not yet commenced.  

Planning Develop more risk-based method for 
2021/22 periodic planning. 

For 2021/22 financial year. Change of Audit Manager delayed this 
process but a full review of the audit 
planning process will be undertaken during 
2022/23. 

Planning Maintain under review the approach to 
periodic planning - annually or quarterly / six 
monthly. 

Review again for 2022/23. Complete, changes to periodic planning 
proposed as part of the Audit Plan 2022/23 
paper. 

Planning Develop Audit Strategy for the partnership. Sep-21 Due to departure of Audit Manager, this will 
not be complete until new Audit Manager in 
post and embedded. 

Planning Undertake Culture / Ethics / IT Governance 
Audits. 

March 2022 (for completion of 
2021/22 audits). 

IT Governance audits on both Plans for 
2021/22. Culture on DBC audit plan. Ethical 
Governance was on SDC Audit Plan but due 
to departure of Audit Manager is proposed 
to be deferred until 2022/23.   

Planning Develop mechanism and allocate 
responsibilities to team members to keep 
knowledge of key parts of the sector up to 
date, share updates with team as a whole.  

Oct-21 Focus at present is on core audit work, not 
yet discussed with the team.  

Data Analysis Provide Excel training to the team.  Dec-20 Complete - basic data analysis provided over 
2 sessions in house and further 1 day 
external course. Need to review further 
options once skills matrix complete. 

P
age 80

A
genda Item

 9



15 

Theme Action  Target Date Status Update 
Data Analysis Arrange demonstration of data analysis 

software. 
Dec-20 Complete 

Data Analysis Add data analysis to team objectives. Dec-20 Complete 
Data Analysis Add to planning checklist to enforce that it is 

considered as part of every audit and that 
non-use is justified – done. 

Dec-20 Complete 

Data Analysis ‘Continual’ assurance using analysis of data 
will be trialled as part of the 2021/22 Plans. 

Complete by March 2022. Audits on Plans, individual audits not yet 
commenced. 

Data Analysis Draft data analysis strategy will be prepared 
by September 2021 (including identification 
of potential costs) and shared with the s151 
officers for agreement of any additional 
funds required, specifically for training or 
software. 

Sep-21 Not yet commenced - difficult at present 
due to staff changes and as other audit skills 
need to be fully developed first.   

Performance 
Management  

Review suite of KPIs to ensure they measure 
what we need to know and want to improve. 

Needs to be in place for 2021/22. Complete 

Performance 
Management  

Review calculation of CSQ measure. Needs to be in place for 2021/22. Complete 

Performance 
Management  

Quality of work including specific standards, 
competencies, deliverables and performance 
measures to be set out in a new suite of 
objectives for the auditors. 

Dec-20 Complete 

Quality and 
timeliness of audit 
work (also links to 
Performance 
Management above) 

All team members to undertake skills gap 
analysis against the IIA competency 
framework. 

May-21 Complete 

Quality and 
timeliness of audit 
work (also links to 
Performance 
Management above) 

Training plan for 2021/22 to be developed 
(reliant on completion of the above action). 

Jul-21 In progress. 

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 9



16 

Theme Action  Target Date Status Update 
Quality and 
timeliness of audit 
work (also links to 
Performance 
Management above) 

Develop a Customer Charter that sets out 
clear expectations for audit staff and clients. 
Include expectation that customers will be 
given 2 weeks to comment on draft report.  

To be in place for April 2021. Complete, ongoing need to remind staff of 
the commitments in the Charter and to 
ensure they are communicating with clients. 
Charter was reviewed in team meeting 24 
November. 

Quality and 
timeliness of audit 
work (also links to 
Performance 
Management above) 

All staff to continue to complete self-
assessments at the end of individual audits 
to identify actions for improvement going 
forwards. 

For 2020/21 audits onwards. In progress and ongoing. 

Quality and 
timeliness of audit 
work (also links to 
Performance 
Management above) 

Training on project planning audits to be 
delivered as part of team meeting. 

May-21 Complete - delivered over two sessions - 
April and May 2021. 

Quality and 
timeliness of audit 
work (also links to 
Performance 
Management above) 

Weekly 121s and action plans. November 2020 onwards. In progress and ongoing. 

Quality and 
timeliness of audit 
work (also links to 
Performance 
Management above) 

Identical audits across both sites to be 
allocated to same team member. 
Some 'task based' teams will be deployed for 
bigger audits in 2021/22 - Ethical 
Governance and Culture, will use agile 
techniques such as daily catch ups and 
specific task based timings.  
'Site based' approach will be considered 
where practical.  

Complete by March 2022. In progress. Audit allocations are complete 
and where possible, identical audits have 
been allocated to same staff member.  
Small teams allocated to Ethical Governance 
and Culture, FC to lead and adopt task-
based, agile approach but EG now deferred. 
'Site' approach to be considered as relevant 
when staff return to office.  

Quality and 
timeliness of audit 
work (also links to 
Performance 
Management above) 

Review and update the Audit Manual.  Sep-21 Complete 

P
age 82

A
genda Item

 9



17 

Theme Action  Target Date Status Update 
IA Charters Review Audit Charters for both 

organisations. 
Audit Committee / Board March 
2022. 

Complete 

Data Retention  Review and update the information asset 
register / data retention schedule.  

May-21 Complete 

Remote Working Complete Lessons Learned review of the past 
year as part of team meeting session. 

Apr-21 Complete 

Follow Ups Review the follow up process and consider 
whether quarterly would be more efficient 
than monthly. 

Apr-21 Reviewed as a team but due to KPI and 
other reporting, decided to remain 'as is' at 
the moment, but training to be provided to 
the team May 2021 and auditors asked to 
be more 'smart' with implementation dates 
- eg try to have the same date for multiple 
recommendations where possible. This was 
reviewed again in October 2021 and 
decision to be taken to keep current system 
but continual to review especially with the 
appointment of a new Audit Manager in 
February 2022. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 83

A
genda Item

 9



18 

Annex E - Definitions of Assurance ratings: 

   

OPINION DEFINITIONS 

Substantial Assurance 

 

 
A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists, 
with internal controls operating effectively and being consistently 
applied to support the achievement of objectives in the area 
audited. 
 

 

Reasonable Assurance 

 

  
There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management 
and control in place.  
 
Some issues, non-compliance or scope for improvement were 
identified which may put at risk the achievement of objectives in 
the area audited. 
 

 

Limited Assurance 

 
Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified.  
 
Improvement is required to the system of governance, risk 
management and control to effectively manage risks to the 
achievement of objectives in the area audited. 
 

 

No Assurance 

  
Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, 
weaknesses or non-compliance identified.  
 
The system of governance, risk management and control is 
inadequate to effectively manage risks to the achievement of 
objectives in the area audited. 
 

 
 

 

 

Page 84Agenda Item 9



 
AUDIT BOARD 

27 APRIL 2022 

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN REPORT (APRIL 2022/23) 
 

1. Summary 
 
1.1 In accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Audit service 

is required to establish a risk-based plan to determine the priorities of the 
internal audit service. This report details the audit planning process, and 
outcomes of consultations on the plan, and the resources necessary to 
deliver the plan. The report also provides details of the work to be 
undertaken over 2022/23.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the Internal Audit Plan 2022/23, at Appendix A to the report, be approved 
 
 

 
3. Background and Discussion 

 
3.1. In accordance with professional standards (Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards), an annual audit plan is devised setting out the priorities and 
activities to be undertaken. This risk-based plan is aligned to the key risks 
of the Council, the corporate priorities and plans, and has consideration of 
the wider risks facing the public sector. The attached report (Appendix A) 
sets out the audit planning process, an assessment of how audit resources 
will be deployed during the year, and details of the audit work to be 
completed.  

 
3.2. The Board is required through its Terms of Reference to consider and 

approve the plan each year. Updates on the delivery of the plan, and 
findings of internal audit work will be reported throughout the year. 

 
4. Internal Audit Resources  

4.1 The report (Appendix A) sets out the audit plan for 2022/23 and details how 
audit resources will be deployed over the course of the year.  

5. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 

Not applicable 

 
6. Financial, legal, staffing and other implications and risk assessments 

 
Financial Implications There are no financial implications associated 

with this report. Delivery of the Plan will be met 
from existing budgeted resources. 

Legal Implications 
 

Under the Account and Audit Regulations 2015, 
the Council must deliver Internal Audit services 
in accordance with the Public Sector Internal 

Page 85 Agenda Item 10

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/public-sector-internal-audit-standards


 
AUDIT BOARD 

27 APRIL 2022 

Audit Standards. The production of a risk-based 
Plan and a Charter are two requirements of 
these Standards.  

Climate Impact 
Assessment 

None 

Staffing Implications None 
Administrative 
Implications 

None  

Risk Assessment No uncertainties and/or constraints 
 

7. Details of Exempt Information Category 
 

7.1 Not applicable 
 

8. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – Internal Audit Plan 2022-23 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref Report Author Section & 

Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 
Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards  
 

  Internal Audit 
Partnership 
 
& 
 
Chief Officer and 
Director of 
Corporate Services 
 

N/A 

Page 86Agenda Item 10

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-internal-audit-standards
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-internal-audit-standards


1 

 

Internal Audit Plan 

2022/23 
 

27 April 2022 
 

Dartford Borough Council 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 87 Agenda Item 10



2 

Introduction 

1) This paper presents the 2022-23 Internal Audit Plan (Annex 1) for Members’ approval.  

Internal Audit Plan 2022-23 

2) Under the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), the Chief Audit Executive is required to 
develop a risk-based plan of work in order to ensure both that Internal Audit resources are used to 
best effect and that a robust overall opinion on systems of risk management, governance and control 
can be delivered at the end of the year.   

3) This year we will be adapting the format of the Internal Audit Plan to increase its flexibility and enable 
the service to meet the needs of the Council in the event of changing risk profiles during the year.  
Previously, Plan A has been the focus with any remaining resource being used to progress audits on 
Plan B.  However, in practice, there has not been any remaining resource and the audits on Plan B have 
not been initiated.  Additionally, it has been difficult to flex Plan A when needed to either add or 
remove audits during the year as and when auditable areas become more or less relevant. 

4) The Audit Plan this year does still consist of two lists, however, we now have High Priority audits and 
Medium Priority audits.   

5) The High Priority list is much smaller than the Plan A previously used.  These audits, due to the nature 
of the risk posed by the subject area, absolutely should be examined in the next 12 months to provide 
assurance that controls are operating effectively.  We commit to delivering 100% of these audits and 
they can only be removed from the plan in exceptional circumstance with agreement of the Audit 
Board Chair. 

6) The Medium Priority list contains a larger selection of projects.  These audits are ones that would be 
valuable for the Council given their risk profile but factors such as availability of the service, 
implementation of new systems or other emerging risks may mean that their risk profile may change 
during the year.  We will look to undertake engagements from the Medium Priority list throughout the 
year and completion of these projects will run alongside those on the High Priority.  Medium Priority 
projects will be selected each quarter based upon the level of risk posed by that area to Council 
objectives among other factors, meaning we commit to delivering at least 9 of the 18 audits presented 
as possibilities below. 

7) The main objectives of the Internal Audit Plan are to: 

 Provide sufficient coverage in order to enable an overarching opinion at the end of the year on 
the overall effectiveness of systems of governance, risk management and internal control  

 Be focused on key risks, and provide assurance on the Council’s management of these  
 Ensure that the organisation is adequately equipped to face future challenges and achieve 

strategic priorities 
 Provide assurance on core systems and key controls 
 Provide advice and consultancy services based on management requests, usually in relation to 

new and developing systems and processes 

8) In order to achieve these objectives, we have followed a detailed risk-based planning process.  This has 
included review of corporate strategies and risk registers, meetings with all Service Managers and the 
Leadership Team and consideration of the wider environment.  We have taken into account how 
changes within the internal and external environments over the past year may have changed the risk 

Page 88Agenda Item 10



3 

profile of the Council. Across all sectors, risks such as information security, financial resilience and staff 
well-being, for example, have become more prominent and all feature within the proposed Plan.   

Resources  

9) In developing the Plan, I have to consider whether resources are sufficient to meet the Council’s needs. 
 
10) I have calculated the total days available in 2022/23 for audit work to be 450 per Council. This takes 

into account all resource, minus allowances for administrative tasks, leave, training and sickness. The 
proposed breakdown of how these 450 days will be used for Dartford is shown in Table 2 below:  

Table 1 – Internal Audit resource 

Activity Total Projected Days 

Risk Management 12 
Counter Fraud 10 
Member Support / Training / Meetings 15 
Follow-Up 25 
Annual Audit Planning 12 
Advisory & Consultancy 55 
Total non-audit 129 
Available for audits/projects 321 
Total Days 450 

11) Priorities have been discussed with Strategic Management Team.  I believe that the planned coverage 
is currently sufficient to meet the needs of the Council.  

Assurance Levels 

12) The CIPFA recommended set of assurance levels and definitions were adopted last year.  Given the 
assurance levels were adopted so recently we will retain this system for the forthcoming year.  We will 
look to review their appropriateness towards the end of 2022/23 when developing the 2023/24 audit 
plan and consider whether they remain the most suitable at that time.  

Conclusion  

13) This report and the accompanying annexes set out how Internal Audit resources will be deployed over 
the forthcoming year in order to provide assurance on the key organisational risks and priorities. 
Overall, the Plan is sufficiently balanced to cover strategic and operational areas across the Council as 
a whole. The new assurance definitions will bring the Partnership in line with best practice in this 
regard and will provide a suitable framework to assess how risks are being managed. The revised KPIs 
will also give Members more nuanced and robust assurances on the performance of Internal Audit.  

14) Members are therefore asked to approve the Audit Plan. 

Page 89 Agenda Item 10



Annex 1 - Audit Plan 2022/23 

High Priority Projects 

Audit Title Indicative 
Days 

Authority Wide Projects 

Organisational Culture 
A review to seek assurance over the Council’s strategies and policies in place to outline, 
monitor and reward desired behaviours and appropriately respond to poor behaviour 

 
25 

Service Planning 
A review to consider the effectiveness of the Council’s service planning process in helping 
services to achieve their objectives 

 
15 

Corporate Services 

Declaration of Interests 
A review to seek assurance on the Council’s processes for collecting, using and monitoring 
officer and Member declarations of interest 

 
12 

Phishing Response 
A review to seek assurance on anti-phishing awareness and training as well as compliance 
with procedures for dealing with phishing emails once received  

 
12 

Programme Capital  (Finance) 
A review to seek assurance on the Council’s arrangements for financing capital projects 

 
15 

Network Security 
To seek assurance on management of the security of network controls 

 
12 

Growth and Community 

Corporate Project Management 
A review to seek assurance on the Council’s project management framework in relation to 
capital projects 

15 

Performance Management 
A review to seek assurance on the adequacy of the Council’s performance management 
framework, including the data quality of indicators monitored 

15 

Asset Management 
A review to seek assurance on the completeness and accuracy of the Council’s asset 
management system 

12 

Housing & Public Protection 

Homelessness Strategy 
A review to consider performance against the strategy 

 
15 

Rent Collection 
A review to seek assurance on the Council’s processes for setting, collecting and monitoring 
rental income from residential properties 

15 

Health & Safety 
A review to seek assurance on the Council’s compliance with the Health & Safety at Work Act 

 
15 

Total Days 178 

 

  

Page 90Agenda Item 10



5 

Medium Priority Projects - Available Days: 143 

Service Area Audit Title & Draft Objectives 
Revenues & Benefits Risk Based Verification 
A review to seek assurance on the adequacy of the Council’s risk based 
verification policy 
Revenues & Benefits Discretionary Powers 
A review to seek assurance on the delegation and use of discretionary powers 
within Revenues & Benefits 
Accounts Receivable 
A review to seek assurance on the controls in place to collect, record and monitor 
income owed to the Council through the accounts receivable process 
Corporate Payment Cards 
A review to seek assurance on the assignment and use of corporate payment 
cards 
Recruitment 
A review to seek assurance on the Council’s compliance with its own recruitment 
policies and best practice, including the on-boarding process 
Payroll 
A review to seek assurance that payroll and expenses are administered 
accurately and in line with Council policy 
Procurement 
A review to seek assurance on the Council’s compliance with legislation and 
Contract Standing Orders when undertaking procurement 

Corporate Services 

Elections Management 
A review to seek assurance on the arrangements for running elections 
Building Control 
A review to seek assurance on appropriate accounting for Building Control 
income and compliance with relevant quality standards 
Development Management 
A review to seek assurance on the processes in place to process planning 
application decisions 
Pre-Application Advice 
A review to seek assurance on the administration of Pre-Application Advice, 
including the use of Planning Performance Agreements 

Growth and Community 

Website Accessibility 
A review to seek assurance on the controls in place to maintain compliance with 
the accessibility regulations 

Housing and Public Protection Garden & Bulky Waste Collection Service 
A review to seek assurance on the subscription garden waste collection service 
and the pre-payment bulky waste collections 

 Stray Dog Service 
A review to seek assurance over the Council’s response to reports of stray dogs, 
including management of the kennel contract 

 Right to Buy 
A review to seek assurance on the Council’s compliance with the Right to Buy 
Scheme 

 Parking Enforcement 
A review to seek assurance on the issuing, administration and  of fixed penalty 
notices and the collection of the resulting income 

Page 91 Agenda Item 10



6 

Service Area Audit Title & Draft Objectives 
 Food Safety 

A review to seek assurance on completion of food safety inspections in 
compliance with the Food Safety Act 1990 

 CCTV 
A review to seek assurance on arrangements for maintaining compliance with 
CCTV Code of Practice and relevant legislation 

Page 92Agenda Item 10



7 

Annex 2  
Definitions of Assurance Levels  

OPINION DEFINITIONS 

Substantial Assurance 

 

 
A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists, 
with internal controls operating effectively and being consistently 
applied to support the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 
 

 

Reasonable Assurance 

 

  
There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management 
and control in place.  
 
Some issues, non-compliance or scope for improvement were 
identified which may put at risk the achievement of objectives in the 
area audited. 
 

 

Limited Assurance 

 
Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified.  
 
Improvement is required to the system of governance, risk 
management and control to effectively manage risks to the 
achievement of objectives in the area audited. 
 

 

No Assurance 

  
Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, 
weaknesses or non-compliance identified.  
 
The system of governance, risk management and control is 
inadequate to effectively manage risks to the achievement of 
objectives in the area audited. 
 

 

Page 93 Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 94



 
AUDIT BOARD 

27 APRIL 2022 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER REVIEW 
 

1. Summary 
 
1.1 To present an updated Strategic Risk Register to the Audit Board for 

approval.  
 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the Strategic Risk Register, at Appendix C to the report, be approved. 
 
 

 
3. Background and Discussion 

 
3.1. The Audit Board last reviewed the Strategic Risk Register in January 2021. 

The register has now been completely overviewed as this previous version 
was overly complex and contained some risks, which were completely 
outside of the control of the Council. The new register focusses on those 
risks that may impact on the ability to function effectively as a council and 
deliver key services to residents.  
 

3.2. The Leadership Team have identified the strategic risks as shown at 
Appendix C. Strategic risks are those which affect key corporate objectives 
or may impact the Council as a whole, or several different services within 
the Council. They may also be ‘high’ risks escalated from service level risk 
registers. 

 
3.3. The Leadership Team is responsible for ensuring that all risks have been 

identified, that responses selected are appropriate and that effective 
controls are in place to manage risks to the desired levels. The strategic 
risks will be kept under continual review and new ones will be added as 
they arise.  

 
3.4. Each risk has been analysed to determine both the likelihood and the 

impact of the risk occurring. A 5 by 5 scoring matrix has been used for this. 
The impact matrix at Appendix A sets out the Council’s definitions for each 
of the ratings across a range of potential impacts and Appendix B sets out 
the likelihood definitions. The scoring grid is as follows: 

  

Page 95 Agenda Item 11



 
AUDIT BOARD 

27 APRIL 2022 

 
 

  Impact 

  Minimal (1) Minor (2) Moderate (3) Major (4) Critical (5) 

Very Likely 
(5) 5   10  15  20  25 

Likely  
(4)  4 8   12  16 20  

Possible 
(3)  3 6  9 12 15 

Unlikely 
(2)  2  4 6 8 10 

Likelihood 

Very 
Unlikely 

(1) 
 1  2 3  4  5 

 
 

3.5. Each risk has first been assessed as the inherent risk i.e. the impact and 
likelihood before any controls have been applied. Existing controls have 
then been identified and the risk scored again with the effects of the controls 
considered. This is the current risk.  
 

3.6. The Council recognises that it is not possible to eliminate all risk. Some 
acceptance of risk may be necessary in order to maximise opportunities. 
Other risks may be partly outside of the control of the Council or it may not 
be cost effective to reduce the risk further. Each risk has also been given a 
target score. This provides the level of risk that the Council is prepared to 
accept for that particular risk. 

 
3.7. Any risks with a current score within the ‘High’ category (highlighted red in 

the scoring grid above) are considered outside the Council’s risk appetite 
and further action will be necessary to reduce the risk. Two risks have been 
identified on the Strategic Risk Register at Appendix C as being within the 
‘High’ category for their current rating: SR10 building maintenance and 
SR13 climate change. In both cases, further control measures have been 
identified to reduce the risk below the ‘High’ level. 

 
3.8. Any ‘Medium’ risks currently scoring 10 or above are also likely to be 

outside the Council’s risk appetite. Several of the risks at Appendix C have 
a current rating of 10 or above and remain at 10 or above even after further 
controls have been identified. Careful consideration should be given as to 

Page 96Agenda Item 11



 
AUDIT BOARD 

27 APRIL 2022 

whether further, cost-effective action can further reduce impact or 
likelihood. However, for some of these risks, the Council has not been able 
to identify any other practical controls and has therefore currently 
concluded that as no further cost-effective controls can be put in place, the 
risks will be tolerated.  

 
3.9. ‘Low’ scoring risks are considered within the Council’s risk appetite and no 

further action is necessary. 
 

3.10. It is the role of the Audit Board to maintain an overview of the effective 
development and operation of risk management in the Council. This 
includes reviewing the Strategic Risk Register. Updates (if any) to the 
Register, will be presented to the Audit Board on a six monthly basis.  

 
4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 

Not applicable 
 

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other implications and risk assessments 
 
Financial Implications None 
Legal Implications 
 

None  

Climate Impact 
Assessment 

None 

Staffing Implications None 
Administrative 
Implications 

None  

Risk Assessment As detailed in the Strategic Risk Register 
 

6. Details of Exempt Information Category 
 

6.1 Not applicable 
 
7. Appendices 

 
Appendix A – Impact Matrix 
Appendix B – Likelihood Definitions 
Appendix C – Strategic Risk Register 

  

Page 97 Agenda Item 11



 
AUDIT BOARD 

27 APRIL 2022 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
Documents 
consulted 
 
 

Date File Ref Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

   Sarah 
Martin 

Leadership 
Team 

N/A 

      

Page 98Agenda Item 11



APPENDIX A IMPACT MATRIX  

 Financial Service Delivery & 
Capability Reputation Legal & Regulatory People & culture 

Impact 
Headings 

Relating to uncontrolled 
expenditure or loss of 

income  

Relating to operational 
delivery of services / 

objectives 

May cause harm to public 
confidence or embarrassment 

Related to breaches of law, 
rules or governance 

May impact negatively on our 
workforce, culture or values 

Critical 
(5) 

(Strategic) Uncontrolled 
financial losses in excess of 

multiple £m’s 
(Operational) Over £250K 

Failure to deliver statutory 
service / service disruption 

for >14 days 

National adverse publicity 
perceived as failing in a 

significant area of 
responsibility 

Breach of law, regulations 
leading to significant sanctions 
eg enforcement and penalties 

 
Breakdown of governance / 
internal control resulting in 

fraud, litigation and 
contractual risks   

Significant staff dissatisfaction  / 
increased long term absence & staff 

turnover 
 

Loss of culture and value framework 

Major 
(4) 

(Strategic) Uncontrolled 
financial losses in excess of 
£1m+ overspend in budget 

by >£1m+ 
(Operational) £100, 001 to 

£250K 

Unable to deliver 
discretionary service / 

service disruption for >14 
days 

Sustained negative local media 
attention & damage to public 

confidence 

Breach of law or statutory 
duty leading to some sanction 

 
Breakdown of internal 
controls open to abuse 

Adverse staff dissatisfaction / likely 
increased absence and turnover of 

staff 
 

Negative impact on culture & value 
framework 

Moderate 
(3) 

(Strategic) Uncontrolled 
financial losses between 
£500k - £1m / overspend 

in budget by >£500k 
(Operational) £25, 001 to 

£100,000 

Unsatisfactory service 
performance / service 
disruption of >5 days 

Isolated negative local 
publicity  

Breach of law or  or internal 
standards (limited sanctions) 

 
Isolated internal control 

weaknesses 

Declining staff dissatisfaction 
 

Isolated instances of behaviours 
outside of value framework 

Minor 
(2) 

(Strategic) Uncontrolled 
financial losses between 

£100k - £500k / overspend 
in budget by >£100k 

(Operational) £10, 001 to 
£25, 000 

Reduced service delivery / 
service disruption for 7 

hours 

Local publicity, but 
manageable through 

communication channels 

Breach of internal policies 
 

Internal controls partially 
effective 

Isolated areas of staff dissatisfaction 
/ likely impact on absence and 

turnover 

P
age 99

A
genda Item

 11



 Financial Service Delivery & 
Capability Reputation Legal & Regulatory People & culture 

Impact 
Headings 

Relating to uncontrolled 
expenditure or loss of 

income  

Relating to operational 
delivery of services / 

objectives 

May cause harm to public 
confidence or embarrassment 

Related to breaches of law, 
rules or governance 

May impact negatively on our 
workforce, culture or values 

Minimal 
 (1) 

(Strategic) Uncontrolled 
financial losses less than 

£100k / overspend in 
budget less than £100k 

(Operational) £10, 000 or 
less 

Disruption managed within 
normal day to day 

operations 

Unlikely to cause adverse 
publicity  

Breaches of internal 
procedures / working 

practices 

Loss of staff morale but unlikely to 
result in absence or turnover of staff 

 

P
age 100

A
genda Item

 11



APPENDIX B – LIKELIHOOD SCALES 

Very Likely = 5 

The council is experience problems in this are or expects to in the next 12 months 

No controls are in place. 

Likely = 4 

The council has experienced problems in this area in the past three years 

Controls may be in place but are generally ignored. 

Possible = 3 

The council has in the past experienced problems in this area but not in the past three years. 

Some controls are in place and generally work but there have been occasions when they have 
failed and problems have arisen. 

Unlikely = 2 

Previous experience discounts this risk as being likely but other orgs have experience 
problems in this area. 

There are controls in place that whilst not tested, appear to be effective 

Very Unlikely = 1 

Previous experience at this and other orgs makes this outcome highly unlikely to occur. 

There are effective, tested controls in place that prevent occurrence of this risk 

 

Page 101 Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 102



Risk Financial Sustainability Risk Ref SR01 Review Date 31.12.2022 
Risk Description Failure to ensure financial sustainability to allow the Council to undertake its core functions, 

deliver services, meet its corporate priorities and objectives 
Risk Owner Tim Sams 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Changes in 
Government 
funding structure 

 Reduction in 
business rates 
income 

 Budgeted income 
levels not being 
achieved 

 Increase in inflation 
leading to increased 
costs 

 Major contract 
failure 

 Poor decision 
making and 
business planning 

 Failure in 
compliance/ 
governance 

 

 Inability to deliver 
services 

 Inability to meet 
corporate 
priorities 

 Inability to meet 
legislative 
requirements 

 S151 issues S114 
notice 

 External auditor 
review 

 Government 
taskforce brought 
in 

 Reputational 
damage 

 Impact on 
residents and 
communities 

 
   x    

          
       

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Annual budget exercise and review of 

Medium Term Financial Plan, including 
review of reserve levels 

 Regular budget monitoring reported to 
Leadership Team and Cabinet 

 Investments approved in line with 
Treasury Management Strategy 

 Training of budget managers 
 Financial implications considered as 

part of all committee reports 
 Role of Audit Board and Treasury 

Management Panel. 
 
 

 
  x     

          
       

       
        

 
  x     

          
       

       
        

 

Source of assurance: Value for Money assessment by external auditor, Grant Thornton; audit report of budget setting in 20/21 received ‘Substantial’ 
assurance; audit of treasury management in 21/22 received ‘Reasonable’ assurance  

P
age 103

A
genda Item

 11



Risk Infectious diseases Risk Ref SR02 Review Date 31.10.2022 
Risk Description Unable to respond to impacts of pandemics, including long term impacts, on the Council’s 

finances, communities and businesses 
Risk Owner Sarah Martin 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 New variant of 
Covid-19 leading to 
lockdowns or other 
restrictive measures 

 Pandemic or 
outbreak of other 
infectious diseases 

 Inability to deliver 
services due to 
lack of staff 

 Inability to meet 
corporate 
priorities 

 Inability to meet 
legislative 
requirements 

 Support required 
for the most 
vulnerable  

 Businesses 
suffering major 
losses or 
potentially having 
to cease business 

 Pressure on 
Council’s finances 

 
     x  

          
       

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Business continuity plans in place with 

most staff being able to work from 
home 

 Staff experienced in running 
emergency hubs and providing food 
and support to the vulnerable 

 Good working relationships in place 
with CAB and Healthy Living Centre 

 Good networks with local businesses 
 Staff experienced in processing  

business grants at short notice 
 Healthy level of financial reserves 
 Both proactive and responsive 

communications with our communities 
through social media and govdelivery 

 
 

 
       

          
     x  

       
        

 
       

          
     x  

       
        

 

  

P
age 104

A
genda Item

 11



Risk Emergency Planning Risk Ref SR03 Review Date 31.10.2022 
Risk Description Lack of ability to be able to effectively  respond as a category 1 responder to a major 

emergency and maintain a suitable response without affecting essential service delivery 
Risk Owner Peter Dosad 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Extreme weather 
 Counter terrorist attack 
 Unpredictable 

district/regional/national 
emergency event 

 Impact on 
communities and 
environment 

 Reputational 
damage if not 
handled well 

 Drain on staff 
resources 
impacting ability 
to deliver other 
key services 

 Financial impact 
if can’t claim back 
costs incurred 

 
       

      x    
       

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Emergency & business continuity 

plans in place and regularly 
reviewed 

 Part of Kent Resilience Forum 
 Relevant staff undertake 

emergency plan training and take 
part in exercises 

 Ability to call on mutual aid 
 Reserves in place that could be 

called upon 
 
Target Controls: 

 Further training for key officers 
 

 
       

          
     x  

       
        

 
       

          
     x  

       
        

 

 

  

P
age 105

A
genda Item

 11



Risk Business Continuity Risk Ref SR04 Review Date 31.10.2022 
Risk Description Lack of ability to be able to respond to a business continuity incident so as to minimise 

service disruptions 
Risk Owner Sarah Martin 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Civic Centre out of 
action 

 Cyber attack 
 Pandemic 
 Failure of supply 

chains/contractors 
 Travel disruption, 

including lack of 
fuel 

 Lack of staff to 
deliver key 
services 

 Impact on 
communities of 
reduction/loss of 
services 

 Loss of key 
systems 

 Inability to 
support critical 
projects  

 Financial impact 
 Reputational 

damage 

 
      x 

          
       

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Business continuity plans in place 
 Hybrid working in place with majority of 

staff being able to work from home 
 Disaster recovery arrangements for IT in 

place at Fairfield Leisure Centre   
 Cyber security arrangements regularly 

reviewed 
  Mutual aid arrangements in place 
 Reserves in place that could be called 

upon 
 Both proactive and responsive 

communications with our communities 
through social media and govdelivery 
 
Target Controls: 

 Business continuity plans to be updated 
and annual exercise performed 

 A full DR Plan is needed and DR 
arrangements to be fully tested 

 Cyber awareness training to be 
undertaken by all staff 

 Cyber awareness training to be rolled 
out to members 

 LGA cyber 360 review to be undertaken 
 

 
       

          
     x  

       
        

 
       

          
    x   

       
        P

age 106
A

genda Item
 11



 

Source of assurance: recent audit report gave ‘Reasonable’ assurance over the business continuity arrangements in place  

P
age 107

A
genda Item

 11



 

Risk Workforce Risk Ref SR05 Review Date 31.10.2022 
Risk Description Unable to recruit and retain appropriate staffing resource to deliver services Risk Owner Sarah Martin 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Key staff leaving 
 High turnover in 

specific service 
areas 

 Inability to recruit 
to key posts 

 Lack of 
development 
opportunity 

 Mass absence from 
work 

 Not having the right 
staff in posts with 
the right skill set 

 Loss of expertise 
and corporate 
memory 

 Loss of capacity 
and resilience 

 High recruitment 
costs 

 Additional training 
costs 

 Impact on morale, 
culture and 
performance 

 Increased levels of 
stress and staff 
absence 

 Service delivery 
impact 

 Reputational 
impact 

 
       

          
     x  

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Regular review of HR policies 
 Management of sickness absences 
 EAP service in place for staff 
 Mental health awareness training 

provided and mental first aiders 
available 

 Hybrid working in place 
 Exit interviews 

 
Target Controls: 

 Workforce strategy to be finalised 
 Succession planning 
 Staff development needs identified 
 Induction film to be completed 

 

 
       

          
       

     x  
        

 
       

          
       

    x   
        

 

Source of assurance: audit report 19/20 on HR policy compliance received ‘Substantial’ assurance  

P
age 108

A
genda Item

 11



Risk Legal compliance and governance Risk Ref SR06 Review Date 31.10.2022 
Risk Description Failure in systems of governance within the Council and partnerships or other collaborative 

arrangements; inability to recognise and adapt to changes in legislation and to ensure 
proper governance to protect the Council from poor practice and mismanagement 

Risk Owner Marie Kelly-
Stone 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Staff and members 
not understanding 
their governance 
roles and 
responsibilities 

 Good governance 
not being observed 

 Risk and 
performance not 
being effectively 
managed 

 Not adhering to 
policies 

 Not overseeing 
governance 
standards of 
partnerships or 
other collaborative 
arrangements 

 Not being up to 
date with current 
legislation 

 Financial loss 
 Service delivery 

issues 
 Reputational 

damage 
 Litigation 

proceedings 
 Legislative 

breaches  
 Excessive legal 

costs 
 Government or 

peer intervention 
 Regulator finding 

fault e.g. external 
auditor or 
Ombudsmen 

 Failure of 
partnerships 

 Fraud and corrupt 
practices 
identified 
 

 
       

         x 

       

       
        

 Experienced Monitoring Officer in post 
 Effective scrutiny by Audit Board 
 Effective Internal Audit Team with risk 

based Audit Plan 
 Regular review of Constitution 
 Member/Employee Codes of Conduct 

promoted 
 Officer and Member register of 

interests 
 Member/Officer Gifts and Hospitality 

registers maintained 
 Financial Regulations & Procedures and 

Procurement rules embedded 
 Whistleblowing Policy & Counter-Fraud 

& Corruption Strategy regularly 
reviewed and promoted 

 Staff briefing on governance issues 
 Legal implications considered in all 

committee reports 
 Annual Monitoring Officer reports to 

Audit Board 
 Lessons learned from complaints’ 

handling 
 
 

 
       

  x       
       

       
        

 
       

  x       
       

       
        

P
age 109

A
genda Item

 11



Target Controls: 
 Independent member appointed to 

Audit Board 
 Employee Code of Conduct under 

review 
 

  

P
age 110

A
genda Item

 11



 

 

 

Risk Information Security & Management Risk Ref SR07 Review Date 31.10.2022 
Risk Description Risk of cyber attack, data loss, breach of GDPR Risk Owner Sarah Martin 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Cyber attack 
 Unsupported software 
 GDPR breach 
 Unintentional 

disclosure of personal 
or confidential 
information 

 Theft of 
equipment/papers/data 
belonging to the 
Council, partners or 
third party companies 

 Reputational 
damage 

 Financial 
penalties 

 Investigation by 
Information 
Commissioner  

 Significant service 
interruption, 
damage, financial 
impact and loss of 
data from cyber 
attack 

 
      x 

          
       

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Experienced Data Protection Officer 
 Data protection training for all staff 

and members 
 Data Protection Policy 
 Data Retention Guidelines 
 Confidential disposal of waste 
 Data Privacy Impact Assessments 
 Data sharing agreements in place 
 PCI/DSS compliance checks 
 Software upgrades and patches 

applied 
 Secure server room 
 Firewall and independent IT security 

health checks  
 Cyber awareness partnerships: 

National Cyber Security Centre 
Cyber Security Information Sharing 
Partnership 
WARP 
KPSN 
Kent Connects 

 
       

          
     x  

       
        

 
       

          
    X   

       
        

P
age 111

A
genda Item

 11



 
Target Controls: 

 Cyber awareness training for staff 
and members 

 Specific cyber training for IT 
 LGA cyber 360 assessment 

 

Source of assurance: external annual IT security check   

P
age 112

A
genda Item

 11



Risk Contract/Supply failure Risk Ref SR08 Review Date 31.10.2022 
Risk Description Ineffectual contract management impacting on the continued delivery of services Risk Owner Peter Dosad 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Major 
supplier/contractor 
goes into 
liquidation or leaves 
the Borough 

 Over reliance on 
single supplier 

 Relationship 
breakdown with 
supplier/contractor 

 Lack of/ineffectual 
contract 
management 

 World 
events/inflationary 
pressures 
 

 Financial impact 
 Reputational 

impact 
 Impact of supplier 

issues on service 
delivery 

 Projects not 
delivered to time 
and/or budget 

 Key service 
priorities not 
delivered due to 
contract failure 
e.g. waste, street 
cleansing, litter 
enforcement, 
leisure, theatre 

 Possible litigation 
for contract failure 

 H&S implications 
 Legislative 

breaches 
 

 
      x 

          
       

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Business continuity arrangements for 

loss of supplier 
 Contract register actively managed  
 Signed contracts in place and 

appropriately filed 
 Guidance on contract waivers 
 Procurement guidance and Contract 

Standing Orders promoted 
 Financial checks on contractors 
 Inflation provision within budget 
 Seeking parent company guarantees 

where appropriate 
 
Target Controls: 

 Business continuity plans for major 
contractors to be reviewed 

 Contract management training for 
relevant staff 

 Contract Management Group to be set 
up to oversee progress of key contracts 
and new contracts 

 Financial reserve provision 
 

 
 x    

          
       

       
        

 
 x    

          
       

       
        

 

P
age 113

A
genda Item

 11



 Source of assurance: recent audit of contract waivers received ‘Reasonable’ assurance; contract management audit in 20/21 received ‘Limited’ assurance, 
the action plan agreed as part of the audit is being implemented 

  

P
age 114

A
genda Item

 11



 

 

Risk IT infrastructure Risk Ref SR09 Review Date 31.10.2022 
Risk Description Failure to adequately invest  in IT systems and IT infrastructure  Risk Owner Sarah Martin 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Failure to 
procure/develop IT 
solutions 

 Lack of capacity and 
skilled professionals 
to develop IT 
infrastructure and 
solutions 

 Failure to identify 
where IT could 
improve service 
delivery 

 Failure to 
implement robust IT 
security measures 

 Unable to 
effectively deliver 
services 

 Unable to benefit 
from service 
efficiencies e.g. 
channel shift, 
digital services 

 Compromise to 
network and 
systems 

 Lack of confidence 
in systems 

 Inefficiency 

 
       

          
      x 

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Robust budget provision for IT 
 Regular patching and upgrades 
 Network security measures e.g. firewall 
 Experienced IT staff 
 IT & Transformation Governance Board 

 
Target Controls: 

 IT Strategy to be updated 
 IT Security Policy to be updated 
 IT Disaster Recovery Plan to be put in 

place and regularly tested 
 

 
       

          
     x  

       
        

 
       

          
    X   

       
        

 

Source of assurance: recent audit report on IT Disaster Recover Arrangements gave limited assurance. Plan to be put in place to implement the actions 
identified  

P
age 115

A
genda Item

 11



Risk Building Maintenance Risk Ref SR10 Review Date 31.12.2022 
Risk Description Failure to address compliance issues, lack of detailed maintenance plan leading to 

deteriorating stock 
Risk Owner Caroline Hicks 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Lack, or poorly 
managed Asset  
maintenance plan 

 Lack of budget to 
carry out required 
works 

 Lack of capacity to 
appropriately 
manage and 
maintain the 
Council’s assets 

 Financial impact – 
increased cost of 
reactive repairs 
etc. 

 Deteriorating 
stock 

 H&S and 
Compliance issues 

 Possible litigation 
and/or fines 

 Reputational 
damage if 
properties fall into 
disrepair 

 Increased voids 
and loss of rental 
income 
 

 
    x   

          
       

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Property Services Team with required 

skills 
 Housing Revenue maintenance 

programme 
 Garage maintenance contract 
 Funding for maintenance and 

improvements within Capital & Revenue 
programmes 

 Relevant clauses in leases regarding 
responsibility for repairs and H&S 
 
Target Controls: 

 Asset Management Plan to be finalised 
 Compliance checks to be carried out on 

a regular basis and documented 
 Condition surveys to be documented 
 Introduction of facilities management 

software to record compliance checks 
 
 

 
   x    

          
       

       
        

 
       

     x     
       

       
        

 

Source of assurance: relevant certificates for gas checks, fire safety inspections etc.  

P
age 116

A
genda Item

 11



Risk Housing Demand & Homelessness Risk Ref SR11 Review Date 31.10.2022 
Risk Description Increased number of rough sleepers and homelessness approaches; failure to meet 

statutory housing duty 
Risk Owner Peter Dosad 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Increase in 
population without 
sufficient housing 
supply 

 Lack of available 
and affordable 
private rented 
accommodation 
within the Borough 

 Rising housing costs 
 Increased 

placements from 
London Boroughs 

 Pressure on housing 
stock from 
increased number 
of migrants 

 Dartford’s 
geography in 
relation to London. 

 Increased number 
of rough sleepers 

 Increased number 
of housing 
approaches 

 Failure to fulfil 
statutory housing 
obligations 

 Impact on life 
chances of those 
sleeping rough or 
in temporary 
accommodation 

 Increased cost of 
use of temporary 
accommodation 

 Legal challenge 
due to provision of 
unsuitable housing 

 Increase in 
placements 
outside of the 
Borough 

 
       

       x   
       

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Housing Options advice 
 Housing Hub providing advice and 

support 
 Increased stock through New Build 

programme 
 Homelessness Strategy 
 Close working with private sector 

landlords 
 
Target Controls: 

 Acquisition of more temporary 
accommodation units 
 

 
       

     x     
       

       
        

 
       

     x     
       

       
        

Source of assurance: audits of housing allocations and new build capital programme in 20/21 received ‘Substantial’ assurance; audit of temporary 
accommodation in 21/22 received ‘Reasonable’ assurance  

P
age 117

A
genda Item

 11



Risk Safeguarding Risk Ref SR12 Review Date 31.10.2022 
Risk Description Failure to follow statutory safeguarding responsibilities Risk Owner Peter Dosad 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Poorly managed 
Safeguarding 
strategy polices and 
processes 

 Failure to make a 
referral for a 
vulnerable child or 
adult to the 
appropriate agency 

 Lack of awareness 
of responsibilities 
 

 Avoidable harm 
caused to 
vulnerable adult 
or child 

 Child exploitation, 
domestic abuse, 
radicalisation, 
modern day 
slavery 

 Failure to 
safeguard may 
lead to 
prosecution 

 Significant 
reputational 
damage 

 Staff morale 
 Legislative issues 

 
     x  

          
       

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Regularly updates of Safeguarding 

Policy 
 Compulsory Safeguarding training for 

staff  
 Safeguarding Officer Lead at Director 

level 
 Safeguarding Group 
 Sharing of minutes from the 

Safeguarding Group at Management 
Team 

 Promotion of safeguarding bulletins 
 Good relationship with KCC & Kent 

Safeguarding Board 
 Basic DBS checks undertaken for all staff 

with regular contact with vulnerable 
adults and children  - checks to be 
extended to all staff who may come into 
contact with vulnerable adults and 
children  

 Basic DBS checks undertaken for all new 
staff including agency staff 

 Extensive Staff training regime 
 KMSAB peer review of DBC P&Ps 

 
Target Controls: 

 Safeguarding training for members 

 
       

     x     
       

       
        

 
       

     x     
       

       
        

P
age 118

A
genda Item

 11



 Regular Audits 
 

 

Source of assurance: recent audit report gave ‘Limited’ assurance for safeguarding but relevant actions identified are being implemented 

  

P
age 119

A
genda Item

 11



Risk Climate Change Risk Ref SR13 Review Date 31.12.2022 
Risk Description Inability to meet the requirements of the Government’s climate change agenda Risk Owner Peter Dosad 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Insufficient funding 
to implement 
measures to reduce 
carbon footprint 

 Insufficient capacity 
or specialised 
knowledge 

  
 

 Failure to reduce 
carbon emissions 

 Failure to retrofit 
Council buildings 
and housing stock 

 Impact on 
environment 

 Reputational 
damage 

 Energy inefficient 
building 

 Increase energy 
costs 

 External criticism 

 
      x 

          
       

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Consideration of environmental impacts 

on all committee forms and as part of 
the procurement process 

 Monitoring of carbon emissions 
 Programme of planting of new trees to 

improve biodiversity 
 
Target Controls: 

 New Climate Change Team being set up 
 Development of ESG investment policy 
 Investigating funding opportunities to 

decarbonise or retrofit Council buildings 
 Making Climate Change a “golden 

thread” through all decisions making 
processes. 
 

 

 
     x  

          
       

       
        

 
       

     x     
       

       
        

 

  

P
age 120

A
genda Item

 11



Risk Fraud & Corruption Risk Ref SR14 Review Date 31.10.2022 
Risk Description Not taking steps to minimise the risk of fraud occurring Risk Owner Sarah Martin 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Staff shortages 
resulting in less 
vigilance 

 Insufficient internal 
controls 

 Lack of awareness 
by staff 

 Financial pressures 
lead to more fraud 
opportunists 

 

 Financial loss 
 Reputational 

damage 
 Staff morale 
 Possible police 

investigation/legal 
action 

 Reduction in 
housing stock due 
to RTB fraud 

 
      x 

          
       

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Counter Fraud Team 
 Counter-Fraud & Corruption Strategy 
 Whistleblowing Policy 
 Anti-Money Laundering Policy 
 Fraud awareness to staff and promotion 

of an anti-fraud culture 
 Strong Internal Audit function 
 Reporting of fraud to Audit Board 
 National Fraud Initiative exercise carried 

out annually 
 Separation of duties 
 Checks on suppliers 
 Basic security checks on all new staff and 

agency staff 

 
       

          
   x    

       
        

 
       

          
  x     

       
        

 

  

P
age 121

A
genda Item

 11



Risk Health & Safety Risk Ref SR15 Review Date 31.10.2022 
Risk Description Risk of health & safety breach Risk Owner Sarah Martin 

 

Triggers Impact Original Risk 
Matrix 

Controls Current Risk 
Matrix 

Target Risk 
Matrix 

 Lack of health & 
safety guidance and 
training 

 Ineffective health & 
safety controls 

 Lack of health & 
safety risk 
assessments 

 Lack of capacity & 
skills around health 
& safety 

 Reputational 
damage 

 Manslaughter 
charges 

 Health & Safety 
Executive 
inspection & fines 

 Increased 
workplace 
accidents or near 
misses 

 More staff 
absences 

 Non-compliance 
with statutory and 
legislative  
requirements 

 
      x 

          
       

       
        

Current Controls: 
 Corporate Wellbeing & Health & Safety 

Group 
 Health & safety risk assessments 
 Mandatory health & safety training for 

all staff 
 Accident reporting 
 Regular health & safety walkabouts of 

the Civic Centre 
 Annual surveys of lifts, PAT testing etc. 
 Regular fire evacuation testing 
 Trained fire wardens and first aiders 
 Staff Training 
 

Target Controls: 
 Health & Safety Policy being finalised 

 
 
 

 
       

    x      
       

       
        

 
       

   X       
       

       
        

 

Source of assurance: H&S certificates 

P
age 122

A
genda Item

 11



 
AUDIT BOARD 

27 April 2022 

SELECTIVE INVOICE CHECKS 
 

1. Summary 
 
1.1 After the January 2022 meeting of the Board, the Chairman selected five 

creditor payments for checking. This report summarises the findings of this 
exercise. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1  That Members note the content of this report and request any further 

explanations as required. 

2.2  That Members select five further payments for checking by Internal Audit. 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

3.1. It is a regular feature of the Audit Board’s work for Members to select a 
sample of payments made by the Council for review. Following review 
of these payments, Members receive a report on the findings, and 
consider them as part of each meeting. This is intended to provide 
Members with reasonable assurance that goods and services 
commissioned or procured, for which payments have been made, are in 
compliance with Council procedures. In particular, that they have been 
properly authorised, requisitioned, ordered and received, prior to making 
payment. 

3.2. The following approach towards selection of the invoices has been  
agreed:  

Meeting SIC Selection Transaction Report 
Parameters 

Q1 (April – June) A B C D E F Jan to March 
Q2 (July – September) G H I J K L M April – June 

Q3 (October – 
December) N O P Q R S July – September 

Q4 (January – March) T U V W X Y Z October – December 
 
3.3. The following five payments were selected at random: 

 Theobalds (Refurbishment) Ltd   £165.00 (Gross) 
 Staff Payment               £290.00 (Gross) 
 Urbaser Ltd     £2,022.25 (Gross) 
 Urbaser Ltd        £1,542.45 (Gross) 
 West Country Group    £2,840.40 (Gross) 

  

Page 123 Agenda Item 12



 
AUDIT BOARD 

27 April 2022 

4. Summary of Findings 
 

4.1 The results of testing confirm that in all cases, the spend decisions were 
made appropriately and in compliance with Council procedures. Detailed 
summaries of the outcome of each payment are set out below. 
 

5. Detailed Findings 

5.1 Theobalds (Refurbishment) Ltd (£165.00 gross) – This payment was 
for clearing the single story gutters, unblocking all downpipes and 
removal of rubbish, in December 2021, at the 20 bungalows that are an 
annex to one of the Council's sheltered housing schemes. A purchase 
order was not necessary in this instance, as there is a contract in place 
with Theobalds for corporate maintenance and responsive repairs. The 
invoice was received on 14/12/21 and paid promptly on 29/12/21 (12 
working days). Testing confirmed that the payment was justified, and in 
accordance with procurement and payment procedures.  

5.2 Staff Payment (£290.00 gross) – This payment was a salary advance 
for a member of staff, for overtime and standby allowance in December 
2021.  Typically, this would be paid through the normal payroll system, 
but the member of staff was unable to gain access to the Employee Self 
Service System to register the additional hours. Their line manager had 
also omitted to register them before the payroll cut-off date. With 
agreement from the Head of Finance, a salary advance of approximately 
67% of the amount earned was paid (using a TAB1 form), and the 
January 2022 salary was adjusted accordingly. The TAB1 form was 
received on 22/12/21 and payment was made the same day. Testing 
confirmed that the payment was justified, made promptly and in 
accordance with payment procedures.  

5.3 Urbaser Ltd (£2,022.25 gross) – This payment was for the September 
2019 core, monthly invoice from Urbaser for contracted services for 
waste collections and street cleansing. A 5-year contract was awarded 
to Urbaser, in July 2019, for them to provide these services for the 
Council.  The amount chosen by Audit Board Members for Internal Audit 
to test, as part of this Selective Invoice Check, was the element allocated 
to the Housing Revenue Account for the disposal of items illegally 
dumped in open spaces on Housing amenity land.  Annual incremental 
increases to these core invoices are made in line with Consumer Price 
Inflation (CPI), and the amounts costed out to each service area reflect 
these increases.  The CPI increase from November 2020 to November 
2021 was approximately 1%.  The invoice was received on 27/9/21 and 
paid promptly on 4/10/21 (6 working days). Testing confirmed that the 
payment was justified, made promptly and was in accordance 
with procurement and payment procedures.  

 

Page 124Agenda Item 12



 
AUDIT BOARD 

27 April 2022 

5.4 Urbaser Ltd (£1,542.45 gross) - This payment was for the Consumer 
Price Inflation (CPI) charge for October 2021 and the amended charges 
for July, August and September 2021.  Urbaser receive a CPI 
adjustment to all of their contract charges on 1 July each year, but the 
July CPI figure is not published until August, so the adjustment is 
backdated. The CPI adjustment for 2021/22 was 2.02%. Urbaser 
submitted an invoice in September 2021 for the CPI adjustment for July, 
August and September, but later realised that the adjustment had been 
calculated incorrectly at just 2%. This equated to a difference of £48.02 
net, per month. The shortfall for these three months were invoiced along 
with the correct CPI figure for October 2021. The invoice was received 
on 22/10/21 and paid promptly on 08/11/21 (12 working days). Testing 
confirmed that the payment was justified, made promptly and in 
accordance with procurement and payment procedures. 

5.5 West Country Group (£2,840.40 gross) - This payment was for the 
order of 100,000 window envelopes, with the Council's return address 
printed on them, for use in the folder/inserter machine in the post 
room.  A quantity of 50,000 envelopes was delivered in October 2021 
and the remaining 50,000 are for call off delivery at a later date.  The 
whole amount could not be delivered in one go, due to storage 
limitations, but a larger quantity meant that a cheaper price was 
obtained. The need for these envelopes has decreased from previous 
years due to the move towards a hybrid mailing system. A purchase 
order was raised using the Council's e-Procurement system and the 
invoice was paid promptly upon receipt (6 working days). Testing 
confirmed that the payment was justified and in accordance 
with procurement and payment procedures. 
 

6. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 

A Council performing strongly – Undertake a continuing review of 
budgets and processes to ensure maximum value for money and 
ensuring a balanced budget. 
 

7. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments 

 
Financial Implications While there are no financial implications 

associated with the outcomes detailed in the 
report, compliance with agreed financial 
procedures helps to ensure that the Council 
maintains a sound system of financial control 
and governance.  

Legal Implications None 
Climate Impact 
Assessment 

None 

Staffing Implications None 

Page 125 Agenda Item 12



 
AUDIT BOARD 

27 April 2022 

Administrative Implications None 
Risk Assessment Obtaining goods and services on behalf of the 

Council carries potential inherent risks of fraud, 
or misappropriation. The ‘Selective Invoice 
Checks’ process is one of many steps 
employed by the Council to manage fraud risks 
and to ensure value for money. 

  
8. Details of Exempt Information Category 
 

Not applicable 
 
9. Appendices 
 

None 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
Documents 
consulted 

Date / 
File Ref Report Author Section & 

Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

None N/A 
 

Audit Manager 
01322 343004 

Internal Audit Partnership 
& Directorate of Corporate 
Services 

N/A 

Page 126Agenda Item 12


	Agenda
	at 7.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford

	4 Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 26 January 2022
	7 External Auditor Audit Plan for 2021/22
	BACKGROUND PAPERS
	Item 7 Appendix A DRAFT Dartford BC Audit Plan 2022

	8 Accounting Estimates and Related Disclosures - External Audit Request
	BACKGROUND PAPERS
	Item 8 Appendix A - PSA Informing the audit risk assessment - Dartford Borough Council 21-22

	9 Internal Audit Update Report (April)
	FINAL Item 9 Appendix A - Internal Audit Update Report -April 2022
	Jennifer Warrillow, CMIIA
	Audit Manager
	Annex C – Key Performance Indicators for Q3 (October – December)
	Annex D – Quality Action Plan


	10 Internal Audit Plan 2022/23
	FINAL Item 10  Appendix A - 2022-23 Audit Plan
	Internal Audit Plan
	2022/23
	27 April 2022
	Dartford Borough Council
	Introduction
	Internal Audit Plan 2022-23

	Resources
	Assurance Levels
	Conclusion
	Annex 1 - Audit Plan 2022/23
	High Priority Projects
	Medium Priority Projects - Available Days: 143



	11 Strategic Risk Register Review
	Item 11 APPENDIX A IMPACT MATRIX
	APPENDIX A IMPACT MATRIX

	Item 11 APPENDIX  B
	APPENDIX B – LIKELIHOOD SCALES

	Item 11 Appendix C new risk register with scoring

	12 Selective Invoice Checks

